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Business Review and Prospects

As of 31st March, 2009, the Group recorded a turnover of HK$789,644,000
(2008: HK$754,224,000), representing an increase of 4.7% as compared with
the corresponding period last year. Included in the amount of turnover was
HK$173,239,000 (2008: HK$152,708,000) generated by the cosmetics business,
representing an increase of 13.4% over the same period last year. Turnover
of the fashion business reached HK$616,405,000 (2008: HK$601,516,000),
representing an increase of 2.5% as compared with the same period in the
previous year. The gross profit ratio of the Group as a whole decreased from
65.2% for last year to 59.70% for the current year, while profit for the year
was HK$18,016,000 (2008: HK$77,926,000), representing a decrease of 76.9%
over that of the corresponding period last year. This was partly due to the
impairment of HK$9,510,000 in fair values of investment properties, comparing
to an appreciation of HK$7,740,000 for the same period last year, in addition
to a valuation loss of HK$3,187,000 was accured for its leasehold land and
buildings for the year, all of which resulted in a plunge in profit for the year
of HK$20,437,000 as compared with that of last year. On the other hand, the
Group had acquired two blocks of industrial building with a total construction
area of approximately 19,000 square meters during the year. Its investment and
integration had been substantially completed, and its production operations
had been commenced. This represents the Group'’s strategic deployment to
close down its production operations in Dongguan and to shift its resources
input to the newly acquired plant in Shantou for enhancing effectiveness of
production costs. As the initial preparation expenses invested into the plant
and the expenses associated with closure of plants in Dongguan, such as the
severance payments and all other necessary payments to the staff, during
the year had been dealt with in its accounts, it was inevitable that earnings
of the year had been affected temporarily. Moreover, some markets in which
the Group has been operating, namely Taiwan and Singapore, had a weaker
currency as compared those of last year, resulting in an exchange loss this year
while there was an exchange gain last year. In addition, the impact of the global
financial tsunami spread to Asia, particularly in the second half of the year,
where the purchasing desire as well as the modes had been adversely affected
that subsequently had influenced the results of the year. As for the segment
results of the cosmetic business, a profit of HK$7,088,000 was contributed to
the Group for the year, as compared with a profit of HK$3,441,000 for the same
period last year, representing a marked improvement in overall contribution the
Group.
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As of 31st March, 2009, turnover of the fashion business amounted to
HK$616,405,000, (2008: HK$601,516,000), representing an increase of 2.5% over
the previous year, and accounting for 78.1% of the Group’s total turnover. As
for segment results, that of the fashion business amounted to HK$26,249,000,
representing a drop of 66.9% as compared with HK$79,352,000 of last year.

As of 31st March, 2009, the Group had altogether 70 outlets in Hong Kong and
Macau (2008: 63 outlets). During the period under review, turnover of the Hong
Kong and Macau market amounted to HK$346,119,000 (2008: HK$364,220,000),
representing a decrease of 5% over the corresponding period last year. The
slowdown in the growth rate of fashion retail business in Hong Kong and Macau
was primarily due to the dampened purchasing desire of the customers as a
result of the global financial tsunami and consequently the economic decline,
which was particularly the case since September, 2008. Faced with such drastic
changes in economy, the Group had strategically implemented more aggressive
promotional activities with an aim to boost sales, such that there was a drop in
gross profit margin.
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Turnover of the retail business in Taiwan for the year was HK$119,557,000 (2008:
HK$111,257,000), representing an increase of 7.5% over the corresponding
period last year and amounted to 19.4% of the total turnover of fashion
business of the Group. As of 31st March, 2009, the Group had 59 outlets
in Taiwan (2008: 51 outlets). The economy of Taiwan remained weakened
in general during the year as proved by the frail consumption desire and
purchasing power of the customers there. The continued weakening of New
Taiwan Dollar during the year was also one of the factors affects the results in
Taiwan.

During the year, the retail business in Singapore recorded a turnover of
HK$44,529,000 (2008: HK$46,267,000), representing a decrease of 3.8% from
the corresponding period last year. As of 31st March, 2009, the Group had
13 outlets in Singapore (2008: 11 outlets). The results in Singapore were also
affected inevitably by the continued weakening of Singapore Dollar during the
period under review.

During the period under review, the business in China market recorded a
turnover of HK$106,200,000 (2008: HK$79,772,000), accounting for 17.2% of the
Group's total turnover in fashion business and representing an increase of 33.1%
over the corresponding period last year. As of 31st March, 2009, the number of
Veeko and Wanko outlets in China had reached 146 (2008: 124 outlets).
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Clouded by the concerns about global economic recession, the fiscal year
of 2009/2010 will remain to be a challenging year for the Group’s business.
The Group’s management will closely monitor any future fluctuations and
uncertainties of the market, take appropriate contingency measures, maintain
prudent financial and operational management and implement strict cost
control. Besides, it will intensify inventory management to lower cost of
inventory and enhance stock effectiveness. Regarding the outlet network
expansion, the Group will review the current outlet mix with caution and
close down outlets with poor performance and expiring leases to offset the
pressure exerted by increasing rents. In the meantime, as there are signs that
the rental level is lowering in light of the current economic decline, the Group
will grasp the business opportunities in such unfavorable conditions to identify
prime locations with reasonable rental with caution to set up new outlets. It is
anticipated that these initiatives will continue to be beneficial to the Group.

In respect of the fashion business, the Chinese government has raised three
times the export Value Added Tax refund rates of garments in the second half
of the fiscal year of 2008/2009, which has proved conducive to reducing the
production costs of fashion goods, and it is expected to be more beneficial
to the Group in the coming year. On the other hand, the Group had basically
completed the acquisition and consolidation of two newly acquired industrial
buildings in China, which had been put into full production operation. In spite
of the temporary effects that the initial preparation expenses invested into the
plant, the expenses associated with closure of plants in Dongguan, such as
the severance payments and all other necessary payments to the staff, and the
expenses regarding removal and integration had been dealt with in its accounts
during this financial year, this initiative will further decrease its production
costs and improve the gross profit of fashion business. Besides, the temporary
impacts will be overcome by the long-term benefits it generates to cost control
of goods, not to mention the fact that it matches up the development of retail
business in China.

VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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The cosmetics business had taken a favorable turn from loss to profit since
the year 2007/2008 and continued to generate earning contributions to the
Group as it segment results for the year surged 106% as compared with the
corresponding period last year and the number of outlets under the brand of
Colourmix increased from 19 as of 31st March, 2008 to 26 as of 31st March,
2009. In the future, the Group will keep on enriching the product portfolio,
increasing the number of cosmetic products with exclusive distributorship,
and training employees to provide quality and professional services. In the
meantime, it will also continue to expand potential outlets, as at the end of
August, 2009, the number of outlets in Hong Kong and Macau will further
increase to 31. While the uncertainties arising from the global financial crisis
had emerged in September last year, the cosmetic business was less affected
by the adverse change of market situation as beauty and skincare products are
considered daily necessity by consumers. In addition, the cosmetic business was
in its expansion period last year and its retail network will be further developed
to bring about larger cost effectiveness under such scale. Judging from the
development trend nowadays, the Group is confident that the cosmetics
business will contribute more profits in the year 2009/2010.
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Liquidity & Financial Resources

The Group’s working capital decreased from HK$198,682,000 as at 31st March,
2008 to HK$171,163,000 for the year.

As at the balance sheet date, the Group’s cash and bank balances amounted to
HK$30,230,000 (2008: HK$26,855,000) and the outstanding bank borrowings
and overdraft amounted to HK$62,585,000 (2008: HK$59,448,000) whereas
the total borrowings was HK$63,740,000 (2008: HK$59,448,000). The increase
in total borrowings was mainly attributable to the acquisition of production
plant of approximately 19,000 square meters in Shantou at a consideration of
RMB22,000,000 in April, 2008, the capital expenditure incurred for acquiring
advanced machineries for production plants and the expansion of fashion
retail business in China during the year. The renovation cost and machineries
cost for the production plants amounted to HK$2,837,000 and HK$5,136,000
respectively. Besides, the expansion of fashion retail business in China (the
number of outlets was increased from 124 as of 31st March, 2008 to 146 as of
31st March, 2009) led to increase in capital expenditure of HK$8,928,000 and
increase in stock level of HK$3,578,000 for the year.

As at the balance sheet date, the current ratio was 2.56 (2008: 3.04) times and
the gearing ratio of the Group was 0.16 (2008: 0.16) times which was calculated
based on the Group’s total borrowings of HK$63,740,000 (2008 : HK$59,448,000)
and the total equity of HK$386,632,000 (2008: HK$372,405,000).

As of 31st March, 2009, the Group had banking facilities amounting to
HK$150,641,000 (2008: HK$108,427,000), of which HK$70,467,000 (2008:
HK$65,968,000) was utilised by the Group. The management believes that
existing financial resources will be sufficient to meet future expansion plans
and, if necessary, the Group will be able to obtain additional financing on
favorable terms.

10 VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Pledge of Assets

At the balance sheet date, the amount of assets pledged by the Group to
certain banks to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group was
HK$62,008,000 (2008: HK$75,142,000).

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency purchases, mainly
in Japanese Yen and United States Dollar which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. Approximately 26% (2008: 28%) of purchases costs are in foreign
currency for the year. The management closely monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency risk by entering
into forward contracts should the need arises.

Contingent Liabilities

At 31st March, 2009, the Company had provided guarantees of HK$164,827,000
(2008: HK$149,427,000) to certain banks in respect of banking facilities
granted to certain subsidiaries of the Company of which HK$70,253,000 (2008:
HK$65,968,000) was utilised by the subsidiaries.

Staff & Remuneration Policies

As at the balance sheet date, the Group had 4,223 employees (2008: 4,534).
The Group mainly determines staff remuneration (including insurance and
medical benefits) in accordance with the industry’s practices. The Group
also implemented a reward scheme for its staff based on their individual
performances. In addition to their basic remuneration and welfare, some key
employees were granted share options as reward and incentive to enhance
their loyalty to the Group.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my heartfelt thanks to all the
employees for their devotion, contribution and diligence and my deepest
gratitude to all the shareholders, customers, suppliers and business partners
for their continuous support. | sincerely hope that all of you will continue to
contribute to the success of the Group.

Cheng Chung Man, Johnny
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23rd July, 2009
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The directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements
for the year ended 31st March, 2009.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2009 are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 34 of the annual report.

An interim dividend of HK0.2 cent per share amounting to HK$3,690,000 was
paid to the shareholders during the year. The directors now recommend the
payment of a final dividend of HK0.2 cent per share to the shareholders whose
name appeared on the register of members on 8th September, 2009, amounting
to HK$3,690,000 at the date of this report and the retention of the remaining
profit for the year.

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the year, the Group spent HK$62,038,000 on the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment for the purpose of expanding the Group’s business.

Leasehold land and buildings of the Group were revalued at 31st March, 2009.
The revaluation resulted in a deficit of HK$3,326,000, of which HK$3,187,000
and HK$139,000 has been charged to the consolidated income statement and
property revaluation reserve respectively.

Details of these and other movements during the year in the property, plant
and equipment of the Group are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Investment Properties

Investment properties of the Group were revalued at 31st March, 2009. The
decrease in fair value of HK$9,510,000 has been charged directly to the
consolidated income statement.

Details of this movement in the investment properties of the Group during the
year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of the investment properties of the Group is set out on page 100 of
the annual report.
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Share Capital

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the Company are
set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
to its shareholders comprise of contributed surplus and retained profits
amounting to HK$53,135,000 (2008: HK$53,135,000) and HK$7,051,000 (2008:
HK$20,814,000) respectively as at 31st March, 2009 provided that, after
distribution, the Company will be able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

The directors of the Company during the year and up to date of this report
were:

Executive directors

Mr. Cheng Chung Man, Johnny (Chairman)
Ms. Lam Yuk Sum (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Cheng Chung Hoo
Mr. Yang Wei Tak
Mr. Yeung Wing Kay

In accordance with clause 108 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr.
Cheng Chung Hoo and Ms. Lam Yuk Sum retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Term of Office of Independent Non-executive Directors

The term of office of each of the independent non-executive directors is the
period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for an initial period of three years, commencing on 1st April, 1999
which should be renewable for each term of three years until terminated by
either party by three months’ prior written notice.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors being proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Directors, Senior Management Biographies

Mr. CHENG Chung Man, Johnny, aged 52, is the chairman of the Group. He
established the Group in 1984 and is responsible for the overall strategic
planning and formulation of corporate policies of the Group. Mr. Cheng has
over 25 years of experience in the apparel distribution and manufacturing
business. Mr. Cheng was awarded the Young Industrialist Awards of Hongkong
in November 2001. He is the husband of Ms. Lam Yuk Sum.

Ms. LAM Yuk Sum, aged 49, is the chief executive officer of the Group
responsible for the overall strategic planning as well as the Group's
merchandising management and design and product development. She joined
the Group in 1987 and has over 20 years of experience in fashion design and
garment industry. She is the wife of Mr. Cheng Chung Man, Johnny.

Mr. CHENG Chung Hoo, aged 72, is a non-executive director. Since 1975,
he has been a managing director of an international trading and property
development company. He has also been a managing director of a property
investment company over 17 years.

Mr. YANG Wei Tak, aged 78, is a non-executive director. He has over 40 years
of experience in international trading and has been a managing director of an
import and export company over 30 years.
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Directors, Senior Management Biographies (Continued)

Mr. YEUNG Wing Kay, aged 56, is a non-executive director. He is a Certified
Public Accountant (Practising) and has been a partner of Yeung & Cheuk, a
firm of Certified Public Accountants in Hong Kong for 16 years. He graduated
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a degree of Bachelor of Social
Sciences.

Ms. WONG Chi Ying, aged 40, is the financial controller of the Group and also
the secretary of the Company. Prior to joining the Group in July 1996, Ms. Wong
worked in an international accounting firm for about four years. She holds a
bachelor degree in accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong. She
is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in
the United Kingdom and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

Share Option Scheme

Particulars of the share option scheme adopted by the Group are set out in note
31 to the consolidated financial statements.

No options were granted to the directors or substantial shareholders of the
Company during the year.
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Date of grant

SRFEL A AR

18th November, 2003

ZERREAA A

21st September, 2004

ZERAENATAHR

16th August, 2006

ZZENENATAH

16th August, 2006

ZZZLEANANH

4th June, 2007

ZZZLENANA

4th June, 2007

ZZZ)\EAATAR

18th June, 2008

ZZZ)\EAATAR

18th June, 2008

16

TrfEHi R
Vesting
period

ZREZETATARE
ZRZLET AN
18th November, 2003
to 17th November, 2007

ZRENELA SN
ZRENERAZAHH
21st September, 2004
to 20th September, 2008

ZERENEMITABRE
ZRENENATLA
16th August, 2006
to 15th August, 2008

ZERAENTARE
ZEFRE)N\JFIA
16th August, 2006
to 15th August, 2010

“EREEANNAE
“E-RERNZH
4th June, 2007
to 3rd June, 2010

“ZREEANNAE
~Z-CEAHZH
4th June, 2007
to 3rd June, 2012

ZER\EARTARE
Y S ViR ]
18th June, 2008
to 17th June, 2011

ZERNEARTARE
ZE-ZERATER
18th June, 2008
to 17th June, 2013

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The following table discloses details of options held by employees of the Group
and movements in such holdings during the year ended 31st March, 2009:

Tt
Exercisable
period

“RREET-ATARE
ZERMEL AR
18th November, 2007
to 17th November, 2009

ZRENELAZT-HE
ZER-RELAZTH
21st September, 2008
to 20th September, 2010

ZRENEANTABE
ZER-RE)\ATLE
16th August, 2008
to 15th August, 2010

ZERE)\TARE
ZR-CHEMATLA
16th August, 2010
to 15th August, 2012

“E-RERNEE
“E-TEAHZH
4th June, 2010
to 3rd June, 2012

“E-CEAHNEE
ZERNEARZH
4th June, 2012
to 3rd June, 2014

I S YN IR WAV
ZE-EEARTER
18th June, 2011
to 17th June, 2013

ZEZERATARE
ZE-EARTER
18th June, 2013
to 17th June, 2015

(e
Exercise
price

per share

016203 70
HK$0.1620

0.2550% 70
HK$0.2550

0205230
HK$0.2052

0.2052%7C
HK$0.2052

0.1860% 70
HKS0.1860

0.1860% 70
HKS0.1860

0.2500% ¢
HK$0.2500

0.2500%7¢
HK$0.2500

REZZZNE

L R REEBER
ZEifh i
Granted
at during
1.4.2008 the year

Balance

15,000,000

2,000,000

3,600,000

3,600,000

17,000,000

17,000,000

500,000

500,000

REZZNA
EUET

AT B
Outstanding

REBERN TRAEBE

Ttk pii
Exercised Cancelled
during

the year

during at
the year 31.3.2009

(5,500,000)

(500,000)

9,000,000

2,000,000

(2,400,000)

1,200,000

(2,400,000)

1,200,000

(3,100,000)

13,900,000

(3,100,000)

13,900,000

500,000

500,000

58,200,000 1,000,000

(5,500,000 (11,500,000) 42,200,000
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Name of director

Mr. Cheng Chung Man, Johnny

MERL L

Ms. Lam Yuk Sum

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

At the date of this report, the total number of shares to be issued upon exercise
of the outstanding options is 42,200,000, representing approximately 2.3% of
the issued share capital of the Company at the date of this report.

The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before 18th June, 2008,
the date of grant, was HK$0.24.

The weighted average closing price of the Company’s share immediately before
the dates on which the share options were exercised was HK$0.247.

Directors’ Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures

As at 31st March, 2009, the interests of the directors and their associates in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO")), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
(the “Model Code”) contained in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were as follows:

AL H B AT

JBe A E 4 kb
Percentage of
the issued
share capital

of the Company

Pife 84T
W e ¥ H
g7 Number of issued
Capacity ordinary shares held

1IN

Founder

1,134,601,359
(Mt #t)
(Note)

61.50%

(EETEIN

Beneficiary of Trust

1,134,601,359
(Kt iE)
(Note)

61.50%

A A

Beneficial owner 162,583,476 8.81%

1,297,184,835 70.31%
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Directors’ Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures (Continued)

These 1,134,601,359 shares are beneficially owned by Silver Crown Profits
Limited (“Silver Crown"). The shares in Silver Crown are in turn held by the
trustee of the J Cheng Family Trust, a discretionary trust, the discretionary
objects of which include family members of Mr. Cheng Chung Man, Johnny
and Ms. Lam Yuk Sum.

Other than disclosed above and certain nominee shares in subsidiaries held
by certain directors in trust for the Group, none of the directors nor their
associates had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of part XV of the SFO) as at 31st March, 2009, as required to be
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Other than the share option scheme of the Company, at no time during the
year was the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to
any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

Appointment of Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-executive
directors are independent.
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Name of shareholder

Silver Crown

Well Feel Group Limited
(“Well Feel”)

HSBC International Trustee
Limited (“HSBC International”)
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Connected Transactions and Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Details of the discloseable connected transactions for the year are set out in
note 33 to the consolidated financial statements. Save as disclosed therein:

no contracts of significance subsisted at any time during the year to which
the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly; and

(ii) there were no other transactions which need to be disclosed as connected
transactions in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

In accordance with the conditions agreed with the Stock Exchange with respect
to the connected transactions, the independent non-executive directors have
reviewed the connected transactions set out in note 33(i) to the consolidated
financial statements and in their opinion, these transactions entered into by the
Group were:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

on arm’s length basis, on normal commercial terms and in accordance with
the terms of the agreement governing such transactions; and

(iii) fair and reasonable so far as the shareholders of the Company are
concerned.

Substantial Shareholders

Other than disclosed above under the section headed “Directors’ Interests in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” and other substantial shareholders’
interests disclosed in the following table, at 31st March, 2009, the register of
substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO showed that the Company had not been notified of any other
relevant interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company.
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Beneficial owner
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1,134,601,359
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1,134,601,359
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Substantial Shareholders (Continued)

Note:

The entire issued share capital of Silver Crown was held by Well Feel which in turn
was a wholly owned subsidiary of HSBC International. By virtue of the provisions
of Part XV of the SFO, each of Well Feel and HSBC International was deemed to be

interested in all the shares of the Company in which Silver Crown was interested.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers and the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers were less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases and total sales for
the year respectively.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders of the Company
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had an interest in the share capital of any of the Group's
five largest suppliers.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed Securities

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the senior management of the Group is set up by
the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to directors
and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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HEHKREH Post Balance Sheet Event

RAERARBBZERSFEFE > ©# Details of significant event occurring after the balance sheet date are set out in
AR A R L3S o note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

1 B i Auditor

ARAFE MR BRARBAE KRG LIREVE A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting of the Company
R LBEEEY e BT G174  to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.
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FRE Ay On behalf of the Board
B3 Cheng Chung Man, Johnny
B §3 SC Chairman
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The board of directors (“Board”) of the Company hereby presents this Corporate
Governance Report in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31st March,
2009.

The manner in which the principles and code provisions in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”) (“Listing Rules”) are applied and implemented is
explained in this Corporate Governance Report.

Corporate Governance Practices

Recognising the importance of a publicly listed company’s responsibilities
to enhance its transparency and accountability, the Company is committed
to maintain a high standard of corporate governance in the interests of its
shareholders. The Company devotes to best practice on corporate governance,
and to comply to the extent practicable, with the CG Code.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has complied with most of the
code provisions as set out in the CG Code throughout the year ended 31st
March, 2009 except certain deviations from the code provisions, details of
which will be explained below.

The Company will continue to review its corporate governance practices
in order to enhance its corporate governance standard, to comply with
the increasingly tightened regulatory requirements and to meet the rising
expectations of shareholders and investors.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of, and promoting
the success of the Company. This is achieved by the setting up of corporate
and strategic objectives and policies, and the monitoring and evaluations of
operating activities and financial performance of the Company.

All the directors carry out their duties in good faith and in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, taking decisions objectively and acting in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Company has formalized and adopted written terms on the division of
functions reserved to the Board and those delegated to the management. The
Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company, including the
approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets,
internal control and risk management systems, material transactions (in
particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of directors and other significant financial and operational
matters.

e VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED




Corporate Governance Report EEERRES

2 it 5 S5 3 T B T K R IR BT A A
B ORE DL R O ) B R A B 2
R MR > DAHE AR AT A gk g
e T T A P A SR o 70 I DL
ToEMERY AW EF RN AHE
R ARG ML H R B
HI A W AR o

ARATZH WG TR REERIRT
A V] AT BOR R e e AT B Rg o HER
FHEEEMARRTHMBRTERS
PRMIE - HEFEH AT RIRZ
Wik Re K TARE RS o bkt 4 9N B AR R o
A B K2R 5 il 2 S S U 3 S e AL o

3 AR

PARREEAY > EH G B LR E A
B H R L L AT B R = o
FEPATES -

BT H S A RO MRl
HEARRNF 2B EW T > 08Ik BAT
HHU TR Z B > BARAFZ
SETE R M - SEB AR B IR KAT R B
AF 98 S ) B e LR -

Aoy W e b LR ALK

HATHESF :
W ek ()
WERL L (FTBAA)

WAL IR TEHF
W oR B A
B A S A
5 7k ik e e

FHEBEZTRERM AR F14HZEE
15K ©

anko

e —————

Veeko

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well as the
advice and services of the Company Secretary and senior management, with
a view to ensuring compliance with Board procedures and all applicable laws
and regulations. Any director may request independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon reasonable request
being made to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operations of the Company
are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and senior management of the
Company. The Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to these
officers for the implementation of Board decisions. The Board periodically
reviews the delegated functions and work tasks. Prior to entering into any
significant transactions, the aforesaid officers have to obtain Board approval.

Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board consists of five members. Among them,
two are executive directors and three are independent non-executive directors.

The executive directors, with their intimate knowledge of the business,
take on the primary responsibility for leadership of the Company whilst the
independent non-executive directors bring in independent judgment and
insights from a broader perspective to the Company’s business in terms of
strategy, business performance, resources and standards of conduct.

The Board comprises the following directors:

Executive directors:
Mr. Cheng Chung Man Johnny (Chairman)
Ms. Lam Yuk Sum (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Cheng Chung Hoo

Mr. Yang Wei Tak

Mr. Yeung Wing Kay

A brief description of the background of each director is presented on pages 14
to 15.
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The list of directors (by category) is set out under the section headed “Corporate
Information” in this annual report and is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time pursuant to the
Listing Rules. The independent non-executive directors are expressly identified
in all corporate communications of the Company. Save that Mr. Cheng Chung
Man, Johnny and Ms. Lam Yuk Sum are husband and wife, there are no financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationships among members of the
Board.

During the year ended 31st March, 2009, the Company has at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive directors with at least one of them possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from all of its
independent non-executive directors in respect of their independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. On this basis, the Company considers
all such directors to be independent in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Company has not set up a nomination committee and the Board as a whole
is responsible for reviewing the Board composition, developing and formulating
the relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of directors and
monitoring the succession planning of directors.

To maintain high quality of the Board with a balance of skill and experience, the
Board identifies individuals who fulfill criteria of the Company. When assessing
the quality of the individual, the Board makes reference to his experience,
qualification, integrity and other relevant factors. No new director was
appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board during the year
ended 31st March, 2009.

Each of the independent non-executive directors of the Company is appointed
for specific term for two years and is subject to retirement by rotation once
every three years.
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Besides, there are also procedures and process of appointment, re-election
and removal of directors laid down in the Company’s Articles of Association
(the “Articles”). In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, all
directors of the Company are subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years at the Company’s annual general meeting (“AGM”) and any
new director appointed by the Board to fill a causal vacancy shall submit
himself/herself for re-election by shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment. Accordingly, Ms. Lam Yuk Sum and Mr. Cheng Chung Hoo shall
retire at the 2009 AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
pursuant to Article 108 of the Articles. The Board recommended the re-election
of these two retiring directors at the forthcoming 2009 AGM of the Company.
The Company’s circular, to be sent together with this annual report, contains
detailed information of the retiring directors standing for re-election.

Induction and Continuing Development for Directors

Though no new directors has been appointed during the year ended 31st
March, 2009, newly appointed directors will receive induction on the first
occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and that he/she
is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and relevant regulatory requirements.

The existing directors are continually updated with developments in the legal
and regulatory regime and the business and market environments to facilitate
the discharge of their responsibilities.

Board and Board Committee Meetings

Regular Board meetings should be held at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals for reviewing, considering and approving the
financial and operating performance, business development and prospects of
the Company. The Board had held a total of twelve meetings during the year
ended 31st March, 2009. Of these, two meetings were held mainly for approving
the final results for the year ended 31st March, 2008 and interim results for
the six months ended 30th September, 2008; the other meetings were held to
consider other significant matters of the Company.
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The attendance records of each director at the meetings of the Board,

Remuneration Committee meetings and Audit Committee meetings are set out

as follows:

LS VR F T Zid
Attendance/Number of Meetings held

HMEEEG
HHE Remuneration

Members of the Board Board Committee
Executive Directors
Cheng Chung Man, Johnny

(Chairman and member of

Remuneration Committee)

Lam Yuk Sum (Chief Executive Officer and
member of Remuneration Committee)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Cheng Chung Hoo (Chairman of Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee)

Yang Wei Tak (member of Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee)

Yeung Wing Kay (member of Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee)

HEREHG
Audit
Committee

Schedules for annual meeting and draft agenda of each meeting is sent to
all directors in advance. Notices of at least 14 days is given of a regular Board
meeting. For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice is
generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable information
are dispatched to all directors at least 3 days before each regular Board
meeting to ensure that the directors have sufficient time to review the related
documents and be adequately prepared for the meeting. As there had been
delays in the finalization of the financial statements, board papers were sent
to the audit committee members less than 3 days before the meetings for
approving interim results and final results. The Board and each director also
have separate and independent access to the senior management whenever
necessary.
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The Company Secretary is responsible to keep minutes of all Board meetings
and committee meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated to all directors
for comments within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final
versions are open for directors’ inspection.

The Company’s Articles of Association contains provisions requiring directors
to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for
approving transactions in which such directors or any of their associates have a
material interest.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

There is a clear division in the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
which are performed by different individuals. This ensures a balanced
distribution of power and authority.

Mr. Cheng Chung Man, Johnny, the Chairman of the Board, is responsible
for the leadership for and management of the Board, ensuring the effective
functioning of the Board and encouraging directors to make full and active
contribution to the Board’s affairs as well as ensuring that all significant and
key issues are discussed and where required, resolved by the Board in a timely
manner.

Ms. Lam Yuk Sum, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, is responsible
for the day-to day management of the Company. She is responsible for
implementing the Company’s strategy, objectives and policies approved and
delegated by the Board with the assistance of the senior management.

The husband and wife relationship between Mr. Cheng Chung Man, Johnny and
Ms. Lam Yuk Sum does not impair the balance of power between the Board and
the management as their duties and responsibilities are clearly defined and set
out in writing.

Board Committees

The Board has established Board committees, namely Remuneration Committee
and Audit Committee to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs
under its defined scope of duties and terms of reference approved by the Board
and to assist in sharing the Board’s responsibilities. All the Board committees
have clear written terms of reference, which are posted on the Company’s
website www.irasia.com/listco/hk/veeko/index.htm and are available to
shareholders upon request.
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The majority of the members of each Board committee are independent non-
executive directors and the list of the chairman and members of each Board
committee is set out under “Corporate Information” of the Annual Report.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense. The duties and
work done by the foregoing two Board committees for the year ended 31st
March, 2009 are detailed below.

Remuneration Committee

The members of the Remuneration Committee consist of all directors of the
Company. The chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. Cheng Chung
Hoo.

The principal functions of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for all remuneration
of the directors and members of senior management, such policy shall ensure
that no director or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her
own remuneration; determining the remuneration packages of the executive
directors and the senior management which remuneration will be determined
by reference to the performance of the individual and the Company as well as
market practice and conditions.

During the year ended 31st March, 2009, the Remuneration Committee has
met twice with all the committee members present at the meeting. The
meetings have reviewed and discussed the remuneration policy for 2009, the
remuneration package and bonus arrangement of the executive directors and
senior management of the Company.

The attendance records are set out under “Board and Board Committee
Meetings” on page 26 of this report and the details of emolument of each
director on a named basis for the year ended 31st March, 2009 are set out on
page 69 in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises a total of three members, being the three

independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Cheng Chung Hoo, Mr.
Yang Wei Tak and Mr. Yeung Wing Kay, with Mr. Yeung Wing Kay possessing
the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. Mr. Cheng Chung Hoo is the chairman of the
Committee. None of the committee members is a former partner of the
Company'’s external auditor.
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The main duties of the Audit Committee are: (i) to serve as a focal point for
communication between directors and the external auditor; (ii) to review the
financial statements and reports of the Company and to consider any significant
or unusual items raised by the staff responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function, internal auditor or external auditor before submission to
the Board; (iii) to review the relationship with and the terms of appointment
of the external auditor and making the relevant recommendation to the
Board and to ensure continuing external auditor’s independence; and (iv) to
oversee the Group’s financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system to ensure that these systems are adequate and effective.

There were two Audit Committee meetings held during the year ended 31st
March, 2009 and the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer were
invited to join the discussion of the meetings. The Audit Committee has
performed the following work during the year: (i) reviewing and commenting
on audited annual results for the year ended 31st March, 2008 and unaudited
interim results for the half year ended 30th September, 2008; (ii) reviewing the
scope of audit work, auditor’s fee and terms of engagement and recommending
re-appointment of auditor for the year ended 31st March, 2009; and (iii)
reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions of the
Group.

The attendance of individual members at the Audit Committee meetings is set
out under “Board and Board Committee Meetings” on page 26 of this report.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31st March, 2009 has been
reviewed by the Audit Committee. There are no material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
regarding the appointment and re-election of the external auditor.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiry of all the directors, the directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard as set out in the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31st March, 2009.
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The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for securities
transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
price-sensitive information of the Company. No incident of non-compliance
of the Employees Written Guidelines by the employees was noted by the
Company.

Directors’ Responsibilities in Respect of Financial Statements

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2009 and ensure
that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and are prepared in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards.

The management provides such explanation and information to the Board
so as to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the financial
information and position of the company put to the Board for approval.

External Auditor and Auditor’s Remuneration

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about its reporting
responsibilities for the financial statements is set out in the Section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 32 to 33.

A summary of audit and non-audit services provided by the Company’s
external auditor, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, and their corresponding
remuneration are as follows:

e 25 2530
Category of Services

A HEA 22
Fee Paid/Payable
T

HK$000

Audit Service

Non-audit Services
— tax services 351
— other professional services 203

1,705

TOTAL

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control system
to safeguard shareholder investments and Company assets. The internal control
system of the Group aims to facilitate effective and efficient operations, to

2,259

ensure reliability of financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws
and regulations, to identify and manage potential risks and to safeguard assets
of the Group. The senior management shall review and evaluate the control
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process and monitor any risk factors on a regular basis and report to the
Audit Committee on any findings and measures to address the variances and
identified risks.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Group for the year ended 31st March 2009. Such review covered
the financial, operational, compliance and risk management aspects of the
Group. The Board has also considered the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function, and their training programmes and budget.

Communications with Shareholders and Investors

The Company endeavors to maintain a high level of transparency in
communicating with shareholders and the investment community at large.
The Company is committed to continue to maintain an open and effective
communication policy and to update shareholders, investors and general public
on relevant information on its business in a timely manner, subject to relevant
regulatory requirements, through the annual reports, interim announcement
and other corporate communications.

The general meetings of the Company also provide a forum for communication
between the Board and the shareholders. The Chairman of the Board as well as
Chairmen of the Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee and, in their
absence, other members of the respective committees, are available to answer
questions at shareholders’ meetings.

The 2009 AGM will be held on 8th September, 2009. The notice of the AGM will
be sent to shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the AGM.

As a channel to promote effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/veeko/index.htm, where information
on the Company’s announcements, financial information and other information
are posted.

Shareholder Rights

As one of the measure to safeguard the shareholders’ interests and rights,
separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each
substantial issue, including the election of individual directors, for shareholders’
consideration and voting. All resolutions put forward at a shareholders’ meeting
will be taken by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll results will
be posted on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after
the shareholders’ meeting. Detailed procedures for conducting a poll will be

explained during the proceedings of meetings.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Veeko International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) set out on pages 34 to 98, which comprise the consolidated
balance sheet as at 31st March, 2009, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagements, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st March, 2009 and of the Group’s profit
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23rd July, 2009
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Consolidated Income Statement ZraUW A IRE

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 BREZZZNEZH=1—HILEE
2009 2008
Wit Fitse T
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B Turnover 7 789,644 754,224
BB AR Cost of goods sold (318,376) (262,835)
EH) Gross profit 471,268 491,389
B B Ay 8 AR Selling and distribution costs (324,618) (297,531)
T M Administrative expenses (118,262) (124,405)
HABUA ~ W2k K 1E Other income, gains and losses 1,165 12,232
WEWEATHEHE(FRE) BT (Decrease) increase in fair values
of investment properties (9,510) 7,740
AN A B 4 A i 4R Deficit on revaluation of
leasehold land and buildings (3,187) -
Rl R A Finance costs 8 (3,447) (3,280)
[ 56 iy ¥ Al Profit before taxation 13,409 86,145
BLIE Taxation 9 4,607 (8,219)
AR A B Y83 ) Profit for the year 10 18,016 77,926
JBt B, Dividends 13 17,200 33,627
B Earnings per share 14
b3 Al
FHAR Basic HK0.998 cents  HK4.586 cents
AL Al
. Diluted N/A  HK4.567 cents

RZ VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Balance Sheet ZR8EEAER

—BBAEZA=t—H

2009 2008
Wit T#x THT
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Non-current Assets
Investment properties 15 31,990 60,000
Property, plant and equipment 16 138,326 92,164
Deposits paid for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment - 486
Prepaid lease payments 17 15,576 9,393
Rental deposits paid 34,457 25,186
Deferred tax assets 18 12,283 7,580
232,632 194,809
Current Assets
Inventories 19 194,500 194,566
Trade and other receivables 20 36,831 49,249
Prepaid lease payments 17 440 254
Rental and utility deposits paid 18,327 23,726
Tax recoverable 712 1,433
Pledged bank deposit 21 1,000 1,000
Bank balances and cash 22 29,230 25,855
281,040 296,083
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 23 51,445 42,122
Rental deposits received 559 991
Secured bank borrowings
— due within one year 24 45,429 44,900
Secured bank overdrafts 22 6,440 1,033
Obligation under a finance
lease — due within one year 25 230 -
Tax payable 5,774 8,355
109,877 97,401
Net Current Assets 171,163 198,682
—403,795  _393491
Capital and Reserves
Share capital 26 18,449 17,677
Reserves 368,183 354,728
386,632 372,405
Non-current Liabilities
Rental deposits received 501 =
Secured bank borrowings
- due after one year 24 10,716 13,515
Obligation under a finance
lease — due after one year 25 925 -
Deferred tax liabilities 18 5,021 7,571
17,163 21,086
403,795 393,491

The consolidated financial statements on pages 34 to 98 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23rd July, 2009 and are signed
on its behalf by:

Cheng Chung Man, Johnny
Chairman

Lam Yuk Sum
Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity #R & REZ= & Fh 3k

For the year ended 31st March, 2009
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At 1st April, 2007

Surplus on revaluation of buildings
Deferred tax liability arising
on revaluation of buildings
Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations

Net income and expense
recognised directly in equity
Profit for the year

Total recognised income and
expense for the year

Recognition of equity-settled
share based payments
Shares issued upon exercise

of share options
Transfer of reserve upon

exercise of share options
Transfers
Dividends

- paid

- share issued in lieu of

cash dividends

Sub-total

At 31st March, 2008 and
1st April, 2008

Deficit on revaluation of buildings
Reversal of deferred tax liability
arising on revaluation of buildings
Exchange differences on
translation of foreign operations
Effect of change in tax rate

Net income recognised directly
in equity
Profit for the year

Total recognised income
for the year

Recognition of equity-settled share
based payments

Shares issued upon exercise of
share options

Transfer of reserve upon exercise
of share options

Transfer

Dividends
- paid
- share issued in lieu of

cash dividends

Sub-total

At 31st March, 2009

BREZZNEZH =1 HILEE

LS
L i P e
A B Property  EENGEME  FERIGEM R Share Al _

Share Share revaluation Translation Special ~Statutory  options  Retained it
capital  premium reserve  reserve reserve  reserves  reserve profits Total
T  F#x T TEx TEx FExE T T Tdx
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
16,627 10,165 2,470 (8,916) 2,266 - 2513 273,651 298,776
- - 4,636 - - - - - 4,636
- - (1,059) - - - - - (1,059)
- - - (2,2006) = = - = (2,2006)

- - 3,577 (2,206) - - - - 1371

- - - - - - - 77,926 77,926

- - 3,577 (2,206) - - - 77,926 79,297

- - - - - - 1,356 - 1,356

128 2132 - - - - - - 2,260

= 1,124 = = - - (1,124) = =

- = = - - 3,409 = (3,409) =

_ _ - - - - - (9,284) (9,284)

922 23401 - - - - - (24343) -
1,050 26,677 - - - 3,409 232 (37,036) (5,668)
17,677 36,842 6,047 (11,122 2,266 3,409 2,745 314,541 372,405
- - (139) - = = = = (139)

= = 12 - = = = = 12

- - - 3112 - - - - 3112

- - 8 - - = = - e

- - 26 3112 - - - - 3,138

- - - - - - - 18,016 18,016

- - 26 3112 - - - 18,016 21,154

- S = - - = 560 - 560

55 836 - - - - - - 891

- 440 = - - = (440) - -

- - - - - 12 - (12) -

_ _ _ - = = - (8378) (8,378)

717 8,105 = = = = = (8,822) =
772 9,381 - - - 12 120 (17,212) (6,927)
18,449 46,223 6,073 8010) 2,266 3421 2,865 315,345 386,632
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity RS fE = & B3k

RECFZNEZH=A—HILEE
The special reserve of the Group represents:

(a)

(b)

the difference between the nominal value of share capital of Veeko
Holdings Limited and the nominal value of the share capital issued by
the Company as consideration for the acquisition, arisen from a group
reorganisation in 1999; and

the difference between the aggregate nominal value of the share capital of
the subsidiaries when they were acquired by Veeko Holdings Limited prior
to the group reorganisation and the nominal value of the share capital
issued by Veeko Holdings Limited as consideration for the acquisition.

The statutory reserves of the Group comprise:

(a)

(b)

reserves required by the relevant laws of the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") applicable to the Company’s PRC subsidiaries and are
appropriated at directors’ discretion, which are complied with Articles of
Association of respective PRC subsidiaries; and

non-distributable reserves set aside by the Macau subsidiaries in
accordance with relevant statutory requirements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement Za & RER

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 BREZZZNEZH=1—HILEE

2009 2008
Tili T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
R OPERATING ACTIVITIES
R il v A Profit before taxation 13,409 86,145
T FIE B 4 R Adjustments for:
B WA Interest income (104) (174)
BEWERNTHME TR Decrease (increase) in fair value of
(EF) investment properties 9,510 (7,740)
TN AL B R T R 41 Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 375 246
FAGRLE L M R 2 R Deficit on revaluation of leasehold land
and buildings 3,187 -
L A Finance costs 3,447 3,280
MEEE - BFE AR BEE Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 903 1,200
e Depreciation 31,704 24,688
VLB s Bt 22 A A B S Share-based payment expenses 560 1,356
BEESBYNZRELEI TR Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital 62,991 109,001
HEREA () Decrease (increase) in inventories 1,319 (54,365)
JRE W B 53k L T A JE Decrease (increase) in trade and
AR (3Em) other receivables 15,784 (13,375)
CAF AL 4 Tk B AR A3 Increase in rental and utility deposits paid (3,872) (5,997)
JRE A B ek L e i B £+ Increase (decrease) in trade and
FRIE B (3 A) other payables 6,208 (18,064)
TR 4 34 5 Increase in rental deposits received 149 68
R EBNEEZ B4 Cash generated from operations 82,579 17,268
CAEEREH Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (3,350) (4,360)
[BARRGZAE Overseas tax paid (1,487) (1,968)
AR R B B NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 77,742 10,940
BHEH INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Wk R~ B Rkt Purchase of property, plant and equipment (60,252) (39,803)
TR AL B SR Increase in prepaid lease payments (6,466) =
WA - W5 B kol Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment 387 258
T B Interest received 104 174
il S ~ R Ik M Deposits paid for acquisition of property,
DA % plant and equipment - (486)
FHR 8 257 i Bl 4 8 NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (66,227) (39,857)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement Za & RER

BREZZZNEZH=1—HILEE

2009 2008
T F#HT
HK$'000 HK$'000
(idee s FINANCING ACTIVITIES
TR SRAT B Repayment of bank loans (17,626) (8,325)
1R R (W) B A Net (decrease) increase of import loans (9,644) 10,620
oA BB Dividends paid (8,378) (9,284)
SRATAE B AR B Interest paid on bank borrowings (3,379) (3,280)
B3R il Y L AR A P Repayment of obligation under a finance lease (145) =
AL AL E AR I O A S Interest paid on obligation under a finance lease (68) -
B ERAT B New bank loans raised 25,000 35,427
BAT AR i A 0E Proceeds from issues of shares 891 2,260
(FIY) 2R B b L7 W B a5 NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (13,349) 27,418
B4 B B4 A I H A B+ NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,834) (1,499)
B 4 K B 4 A IE H CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 24,822 25,023
AN TE RS B 2 R EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RATE CHANGES (198) 1,298
AN B4 KB4 I H CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR 22,790 24,822
B - Representing by:
SBITERRBLE Bank balances and cash 29,230 25,855
SBITE X Bank overdrafts (6,440) (1,033)
22,790 24,822
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r5 B 7 3R & Mi =

For the year ended 31st March, 2009
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The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability
in the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The directors consider the parent and
the ultimate holding company is Silver Crown Profits Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in “Corporate
Information” of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the same as the functional currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 37.

2.  Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied, the following amendments and
interpretations (“new HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) which are or have become effective.

Reclassification of Financial Assets

4 A 2 HOH 43 4

Service Concession Arrangements

I35 5 4 HE

HKAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset,
Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction

A WAl S A5 1 ot — SRUE AR R A MR B B R R W 2 EL ) B AR
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HKFRSs (Amendments)

Vs A i ) (I T AR

HKFRSs (Amendments)

T v B i 5 3 ) (13T AR)

HKAS 1 (Revised)

T v 1 A AR R (BT

HKAS 23 (Revised)

v 6 Al A5 2358 (RIERT)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

W 1 5k A 5B 2758 (B AERT)

HKAS 32 & 1 (Amendments)

Fr v & U ) S35 S A1 9% (1B 3T AR)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

A Wt SR 3058 (3T A%)

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27 (Amendments)

T v 5 R R A v
SE279% (1ERTAR)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

T Vb B 2 it 5 3 B 2B 258 (13T AX)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

T v B 5 e 5 3 B SR 38R (RGBT

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

T U B 7 5 4 B SR 7% (1B RT AR)

HKFRS 8

U B 7 i 1l 34 H S 8%

HK(IFRIC) - Int 9 & HKAS 39 (Amendments)

T (BB ERERBEZEG )RR
T v &l 3 A 2R 395% (13T 4%)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 13

i (H BT EREDBRHG)- 213

HK(IFRIC) - Int 15
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HK(IFRIC) - Int 16
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HK(IFRIC) - Int 17
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HK(IFRIC) - Int 18
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Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on how the results
and financial position for the current or prior accounting periods have been
prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been
required.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised standards,
amendments or interpretations that have been issued but are not yet effective.

Improvements to HKFRSs'

7 i 5 i Al e ) 2 e

Improvements to HKFRSs 20092

6 A Y 2 O (R B P

Presentation of Financial Statements?

W Rk R ) 2513

Borrowing Costs?

5 £ AR

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements*

F o B i B

Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising of Liquidation®
R 4 R R I A 2 BT

Eligible hedged items*

AR MIEE

Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate?
TP BEE G 2 ]~ 3 ) e T R A 0 0 ) 2 B A

Vesting Conditions and Cancellations?

S A B 12

Business Combinations*

1 3

Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments?
S T H B8k 2 Boks

Operating Segments?

LAy

Embedded Derivatives®

ARG E T HS

Customer Loyalty Programmes®

& 7 8 Gt e

Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate?
0 7 2 T o

Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation’
RBEAD 3 B R 4 2 v

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners*

BEA AR B 4 o

Transfers of Assets from Customers®

A% PR & e
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For the year ended 31st March, 2009

2. JERFET REBERGTZE
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Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2009
except the amendments to HKFRS 5, effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1st July, 2009.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2009, 1st
July, 2009 and 1st January, 2010, as appropriate.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2009.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2009.

5 Effective for annual periods ending on or after 30th June, 2009.

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2008.

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st October, 2008.
8 Effective for transfers on or after 1st July, 2009.

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the Group’s accounting
for business combination for which the acquisition date is on or after 1st
April, 2010. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the Group’s accounting treatment
for changes in a Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary. The directors of
the Company anticipate that the application of the other new and revised
standards, amendments or interpretations will have no material impact on the
results and the financial position of the Group.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis except for certain properties, which are measured at revalued amounts or
fair values as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of
the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control
is achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated income statement from the effective date of acquisition or
up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on
consolidation.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in normal course
of business, net of discounts, returns and allowances.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the goods are delivered and
title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to
the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Investment properties are properties held to earn rental and/or for capital
appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values using the fair value
model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
property are included in the consolidated income statement for the period in
which they arise.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use or no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the consolidated income statement
in the year in which the item is derecognised.

If an investment property becomes owner occupied property (including both
leasehold land and building elements) because its use changed as evidenced by
commencement of owner-occupation, the deemed cost of the property interest
for subsequent accounting shall be its fair value at the date of change in use.

Property, plant and equipment, including land and buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes other
than construction in progress are stated at cost, deemed cost or fair value less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated balance
sheet at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation
less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses. Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity such
that the carrying amount does not differ materially from that which would be
determined using fair values at the balance sheet date.

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of land and buildings is credited
to the revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation
decrease of the same asset previously recognised as an expense, in which case
the increase is credited to the consolidated income statement to the extent of
the decrease previously charged. A decrease in net carrying amount arising on
revaluation of an asset is dealt with as an expense to the extent that it exceeds
the balance, if any, on the revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation
of that asset. On the subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued asset, the
attributable revaluation surplus is transferred to retained profits.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost or fair value of items of property,
plant and equipment other than construction in progress over their estimated
useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated residual value, using
the straight-line method.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment in the
course of construction for production or for its own use purposes. Construction
in progress is carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss. Construction
in progress is classified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful
lives on the same basis as owned assets or, where shorter, the term of the
relevant lease.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use
of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the item) is included in the consolidated income statement in the year in which
the item is derecognised.

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount under another standard, in which case the impairment loss is treated as
revaluation decrease under that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another standard, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as
a revaluation increase under that standard.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group at their
fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the
minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included
in the consolidated balance sheet as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments
are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation
so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance charges are charged directly to profit or loss.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits received and
receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised as a
reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and building are considered
separately for the purpose of lease classification, unless the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building elements, in which
case, the entire lease is generally treated as a finance lease and accounted for
as property, plant and equipment. To the extent the allocation of the lease
payments can be made reliable, leasehold interests in land are accounted
for as operating leases. If the allocation of the lease payments cannot be
made reliable, leasehold interests in land are classified and accounted for
as investment properties under fair value model as if it was a finance lease.
When an investment property is subsequently transferred to owner-occupied
property, the leasehold interests in land should continue to be accounted for as
a finance lease for subsequent measurement as property, plant and equipment.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
calculated using the first-in, first-out method.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and receivables.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period. Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. At each
balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables, rental and utility deposits paid, pledged
bank deposit and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment at each
balance sheet date. Loans and receivables are impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition, the estimated future cash flows have been impacted.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of loans and receivables (Continued)

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial
re-organisation.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the loans and receivables is reduced by the impairment
loss directly.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
losses was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of
a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period. Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities of the Group including trade and other payables, rental
deposits received, secured bank borrowings, secured bank overdrafts and
obligation under a finance lease are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the
relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional currency (i.e. the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet
date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the

translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised as a separate component of equity (the translation reserve).
Such exchange differences are recognised in the income statement in the
period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from profit as reported in the consolidated income statement because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable profit, and is
accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet
date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is
charged or credited to profit or loss, except when it relates to items charged or
credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in
equity.

All borrowing costs are recognised as and included in finance costs in the
consolidated income statement in the period in which they are incurred.

Payments to the state-managed retirement benefit schemes and the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme are charged as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Share options granted to employees of the group entities

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair value
of share options granted at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve).

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss, with a
corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share premium.
When the share options are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to retained
profits.
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4. Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described
in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

As at 31st March, 2009, a deferred tax asset of HK$6,988,000 and HK$4,742,000
(2008: HK$2,289,000 and HK$3,727,000) in relation to unused tax losses and
unrealised profit on inventories have been recognised in the Group's balance
sheet respectively. No deferred tax has been recognised in respect of unused
tax losses of HK$36,497,000 (2008: HK$56,625,000) due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly
depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences
will be available in the future. In cases where the actual future profits generated
are less or more than expected, a material reversal or additional recognition of
deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in the consolidated
income statement in future.

The management of the Group reviews the inventories listing at each balance
sheet date, and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventory
items identified based on their estimation and experience. As at 31st March,
2009, the carrying amount of inventories (net of allowances amounted to
HK$3,332,000 (2008: HK$1,453,000)) is HK$194,500,000 (2008: HK$194,566,000).
The management estimates the net realisable value for such finished goods
based primarily on the latest invoice prices and current market conditions. If
the conditions of inventories are deteriorated, or the market conditions worsen
significantly, additional allowances may be required.
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5. Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able
to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes secured
bank borrowings and obligation under a finance lease disclosed in notes 24
and 25 respectively, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained
profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular basis.
As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and the risks
associates with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

6. Financial Instruments

2009 2008
Tt F¥T
HK$'000 HK$'000
Financial assets
Loans and receivables
(including cash and cash equivalents) 112,821 117,299
Financial liabilities
Amortised cost 83,408 76,851

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other receivables,
rental and utility deposits paid, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash,
trade and other payables, rental deposits received, secured bank borrowings,
secured bank overdrafts and obligation under a finance lease. Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk (represented by currency
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. Management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Market risk

(i)

Renminbi (“RMB”)
Japanese Yen (“Yen”)
Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD")

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency sales,
purchases and secured bank borrowings, which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk. Approximately 74% (2008: 72%) of
purchase costs are denominated in the group entity’s functional
currency. In addition, the group entities are exposed to foreign
currency risk attributable to intra-group receivables and payables
where the denomination of the receivables and payables is in a
currency other than the functional currency of the relevant group
entities. The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management closely monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arises.

The Group’s currency risk is mainly attributable to the exposure
outstanding on receivables, payables and bank borrowings
denominated in RMB, Yen and HKD. The carrying amounts at the
reporting dates are as follows:

& fafi

Assets Liabilities
2009 2008 2009 2008
T T Ti#L R
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
10 431 429 945
5 6 60 10,397
0 0 84,994 52,784
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(1)

Impact on profit

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% (2008:
5%) increase and decrease in the functional currency of each
group entity against the relevant foreign currency. 5% (2008:
5%) is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency
risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes the
Group's outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items, intra-group receivables and payables where the
denomination of the receivables and payables is in a currency
other than the functional currency of the relevant group entities
and adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5% (2008: 5%)
increase in foreign currency rates. A positive number below
indicates an increase in post-tax profit for the year where the
functional currency of each group entity strengthens 5% (2008:
5%) against the relevant foreign currency. For a 5% (2008: 5%)
weakening of functional currency of each group entities against
the relevant currency, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the post-tax profit, and the balances below would be

negative.
INN 4 7% HEZ®® B RE
RMB impact Yen impact HKD impact
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Ti#x  T#x  T#x  T#Ex  T#x  T#x
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
18 21 2 429 3,259 2,039

colourmix &




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 475 B 758 & Mz

For the year ended 31st March, 2009

6. @t TH(4H)

7 5 b ()

(i)

56

T 5 I

A A5 8 28 7 32 A T T E A
FRERAT A7 K B 1l AL R
% (B RA R 2
B B 521 K 25)Z A F A
2 B o A P R A
T AR A 2R R B o Sl AR
JRR B3 i A B o

A4 [ R A B RS
WBSATE -~ BATBE X K
WITMHE FRARZH
1% 75 2 B M 5E22 % 24)81
A Y A R B o AR E
SR TG s HERAT B R R
PRFE B > 181 A A
R 48 ) 2R BB o BT AR %
Z VB SRAT AR K Z F 2R R
i Sl A B o

2445 B 4l £ i 2 A R
IR - Nk S N
v U1 B <, e A B
PR o ACSR H 2 BL A
HJm b o A H AL E
WO A R 2 W RAT
] E 47 B 2 W o

A5 I B IR I 1 8 4 °F
T B 43 ) 5 o 6 BT 4T 4
A ) S 38 3 B o SR >
A B R A B R R A
B > Sl AR A T B
TR ] AR Y AT B b o

K A A

VLT S8 B 43 B T AR 48R
5T H R RPATER - SR
1798 X B SRAT R R 2 M &R
JEEL I3 T 7 o BRL R A B g
WA SRAT 1 AR 2 F) 3R B
BN (2 AL &5
REEEHZABSH 2
AR Z BRAEN AR A o
BLAF BN B AR A 2R B 2
PR IR B R A R
50f (ZZFZF )\ 4 : 501f)
FE BB S A > k5
B g ) KPP AL BB
oy i [ o

A

RE-BRIUESA S+ H I
6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
fixed-rate bank deposits and obligation under a finance lease (see
notes 21 and 25 for details of these balances). The management
monitors the fair value interest rate risk exposure and considers
as insignificant.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to variable-rate short-term bank deposits, bank
overdrafts and bank borrowings (see notes 22 and 24 for
details of these balances). It is the Group’s policy to keep its
borrowings at floating rate of interests so as to minimise the fair
value interest rate risk. The exposure to the interest rate risk for
variable-rate bank deposits is insignificant.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities are
detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this note.
The Group cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank Offer Rate (“HIBOR")
arising from the Group’s HKD borrowings.

The Group currently does not have any interest rate hedging
policy in relation to fair value and cash flow interest rate risks.
However, management monitors interest rate exposure on
ongoing basis and will consider hedging significant interest rate
risk should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for bank overdrafts and bank
borrowings at the balance sheet date because the management
considers the interest rate risk of bank deposits is insignificant.
The analysis is prepared assuming the amount of liability
outstanding at the balance sheet date was outstanding for the
whole year. A 50 (2008: 50) basis point increase or decrease
is used for when reporting interest rate risk internally to
key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.
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6. ST H(4) 6. Financial Instruments (Continued)
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Market risk (Continued)
(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)

If interest rates had been 50 (2008: 50) basis points higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s profit for
the year ended 31st March, 2009 would decrease/increase by
HK$261,000 (2008: HK$187,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group’s exposure to interest rate risk on its variable-rate bank
overdrafts and bank borrowings.

Credit risk

As at 31st March, 2009, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge
an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated balance sheet.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at each balance
sheet date to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are
banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure
spread over a number of counterparties and customers.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

I B) B £ ) B Liquidity risk

% AR B 0 BRAT A AR R R The Group relies on bank borrowings as a major source of liquidity.
B 4 RUR o wE A U B RE24 o Details of which are set out in note 24. As at 31st March, 2009, the Group
R-ZRAUE=ZHA=1+—H K has available unutilised facilities of approximately HK$80,174,000 (2008:
AW BN Z RN S8RAT S HK$42,459,000).

#180,174,000% 7 (= F & )\ 4 :
42,459,000% 75 ) °

7 42 T B 47 e A A B R R A e
Je 2 B4 B Bl & I H OKF >
Ty A B R B B G TR AR B
SWPHZHE > UFRRHE
Sl B o A B g B 4 ) H BRAT A
FEZAHVL > AR AT Bk ik

AR A 4 B A A G A
ZAT AR Z R 5 R R AR AR
T B PR R R E
L2 R I Bl 4 b £ A B 4 i A
i A5 5 o E 3R 6 45 A 6L R A 4 Bl
B

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation
of bank borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows.

REZZNE
Aigi%4 =H=1+—H
Ak Z IR
T Total Carrying
Weighted ~ —MANUAN  —ZE=WA =ZWAFE—% fisEPL L undiscounted amount
average Less than 13 3 months —RHAE Over5 cash at
interest rate 1 month months to 1year 1-5 years years flows 31.3.2009
A T T T T T T T
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
“RRNE 2009
Pt A Non-derivative
financial liabilities
JERT B 5 R B Trade and other payables
TR SR - 15,388 3,220 - - - 18,608 18,608
Gk Rental deposits received - 91 81 387 501 - 1,060 1,060
R BT Secured bank borrowings
-8 - variable rate 24 25375 18,206 2216 9,969 1,143 56,909 56,145
RGBS Secured bank overdrafts 6.1 6472 - - - - 6472 6,440
R R i Obligation under a finance lease 83 27 53 239 1,061 - 1,380 1,155
47353 21,560 2882 11,531 1,143 84,429 83,408
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6.  Financial Instruments (Continued)
I B) B <8l B () Liquidity risk (Continued)
REZZZNE
Aig%4 =H=+-H
Ak Z IR
T Total Carrying
Weighted ~ —MAUN  —ZE=WA =WAE—4% fifEPL L undiscounted amount
average Less than 1-3 3 months —RHAE Over5 cash at
interest rate 1 month months to 1year 1-5 years years flows 31.3.2008

Bl T T T Tl T T Tl
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

“BR)\AE 2008
Jefii kA £ R Non-derivative
financial liabilities

JERT B 5 R B Trade and other payables

JERS R - 13,483 2,923 6 - - 16,412 16,412
ol 444 Rental deposits received - 2143 338 410 - - 991 991
R BT Secured bank borrowings

-#R - variable rate 40 7,681 21,088 17,579 11,042 3613 61,003 58,415
HHMRITEL Secured bank overdrafts 55 1,039 - - - = 1,039 1,033

22,446 24,349 17,995 11,042 3613 79,445 76,851

BREEREMAMZ A FEMETIEM  The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined in
BITBBEEMBESITEBRMNZ EMEE  accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
KoM HBIEI BTG L SFER  flow analysis using rates from observable current market transactions and
A2 5 VR 8 R S O e dealer quotes for similar instruments.

RATHERRR > REGMBE®REI %R The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of financial
WA Z MEEKEMAMZIEE  assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
B A PR AR - financial statements approximate their fair values.
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7. EW KRS 7. Business and Geographical Segments

RN B RS > ARBEEY KA  The Group operates and manages the business segments as strategic
ML RRE REHER S B > Wk organisational units for internal financial reporting purposes and determined
JE VLR oy 2 B BAE R £ that business segments by products are its primary reporting segments. As
WMo F o REE 2 EH S R/WAR  a result, the Group’s operations was organised into two reporting segments
WG B RS LMHELERHEY comprising manufacture and sales of ladies fashion and sales of cosmetics.
Kotk i o ZEEBEZ S BERE  Segment information about these businesses is presented below:

B
“ERAE 2009
WA R INCOME STATEMENT
I 4 Ak st i R 8 B
Fashion Cosmetics Eliminations Consolidated
T T T Tt
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEE TURNOVER
5 Sales of goods 616,405 173,239 - 789,644
Vig LiPaii Inter-segment sales 118 3 (121) -
616,523 173,242 (121) 789,644
S JE T 2 8 5 1R BLAT Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.
T 35 G w5 o
Vig B3 SEGMENT RESULT 26,249 7,088 33,337
B AT T Decrease in fair values of
investment properties (9,510)
AL i T 1R Deficit on revaluation of leasehold land and buildings (3,187)
AFA Corporate income 2,588
Ak diil Corporate expenses (6,372)
A A Finance costs (3,447)
I3 5% T ¥ A1) Profit before taxation 13,409
BRI Taxation 4,607
A4 JEE i A1) Profit for the year 18,016
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7.  ER KRB () 7. Business and Geographical Segments (Continued)

HE AR BALANCE SHEET
I 345 (R4 A
Fashion Cosmetics Consolidated
Tt T T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
2473 ASSETS
SREE Segment assets 375,602 61,235 436,837
28 i) Corporate assets 76,835
AEARE R Consolidated total assets 513,672
£ % LIABILITIES
i W=R Segment liabilities 39,766 10,977 50,743
A= R Corporate liabilities 76,297
A AaE Consolidated total liabilities 127,040
B4 Akt 2] o
Fashion Cosmetics Corporate Consolidated
T T T R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Hoth 3} OTHER INFORMATION
1755 e Allowance for inventories 1,821 58 = 1,879
HARBH 32 Capital expenditure 55,916 6,027 95 62,038
FESE ~ WU Bkt 2 T8 Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 26,306 3,979 1,419 31,704
HEEE - BB RZHEZEK  Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 747 156 - 903
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7.  EH RSB (AH) 7. Business and Geographical Segments (Continued)

e = IV 2008
WA 3k INCOME STATEMENT
(13 Akt 18 Sty
Fashion Cosmetics Eliminations Consolidated
FHoT FHoT Tt T
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB TURNOVER
5 Sales of goods 601,516 152,708 - 754,224
Sy JE T Z & B Inter-segment sales 13 4 (17) =
601,529 152,712 17) 754,224
S H I Z 88 TR BT Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.
T B A R
Vig B3 SEGMENT RESULT 79,352 3,441 82,793
RGP A M T Increase in fair values of
investment properties 7,740
AFBA Corporate income 4,010
NGk 4| Corporate expenses (5,118)
Rl A Finance costs (3,280)
o3 o T ¥ A1) Profit before taxation 86,145
LI Taxation (8,219)

AR A JiE ¥ai ] Profit for the year 77,926
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7.  ER KRB () 7. Business and Geographical Segments (Continued)

HE AR BALANCE SHEET
B2 Akt it ey
Fashion Cosmetics  Consolidated
Tt T T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2473 ASSETS
O3 JH Segment assets 336,389 67,885 404,274
28 i) Corporate assets 86,618
AEARE R Consolidated total assets 490,892
£ % LIABILITIES
i W=R Segment liabilities 33,010 8,390 41,400
A= R Corporate liabilities 77,087
A AaE Consolidated total liabilities 118,487
I Akt i A BE
Fashion Cosmetics Corporate Consolidated
T T T R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Hoth 3} OTHER INFORMATION
jeZ N 53 Capital expenditure 37,629 2,174 = 39,803
FESE ~ WU B 2 e Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 18,707 5,060 921 24,688
HEEE - BB LRZHEZEK  Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 814 386 - 1,200
R Z 38 Reversal of allowance

of inventories (2,470) - - (2,470)
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7.  EH RSB (AH) 7. Business and Geographical Segments (Continued)

AREEZ EHEEMPAEW WM&  The Group’s operations are principally located in Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan,
W RmE KB Z M Ab R o A4 Singapore and other regions of the PRC. The following is an analysis of the

oo [ v 35 A B 2 BB A AT B ATINE ¢ Group's sales by geographical market location:
BRE
Turnover

2009 2008
T#t T¥#IT
HK$’000 HK$’000
T s SR Hong Kong and Macau 518,755 516,072
=R Taiwan 120,160 112,113
B Singapore 44,529 46,267
o ] 22 A 3 i Other regions of the PRC 106,200 79,772
789,644 754,224

PR ERERERSNAEEREIRT  The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets, and

B M & AP X capital expenditure, analysed by the geographical area in which the assets are
located:
43 JEE VR i A
Carrying amount BEA B 32
of segment assets Capital expenditure
2009 2008 2009 2008
Tt T-#IT T# T#IT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T SR Hong Kong and Macau 152,255 157,774 16,443 8,531
=8 ] Taiwan 61,706 40,369 3,660 2,408
B Singapore 14,041 12,608 4,659 1,055
o ] 22 Al 3 i Other regions of the PRC 208,835 193,523 37,276 27,809
436,837 404,274 62,038 39,803
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8. RhEMA

AT E AR,
JRU TLAF 9 R R 1Y
SRATAE &
AR TLAR M TR AR 1Y
SRATAE B
Ol A R

LI B 32 AL 45
AU I 131
AR
O A JEE M AR A

At ] 3 e i

EERIE (HHiE18)
AN
PRI B = 52 ) oy B

T v ) 43 L T Hi A AR B A 5 SRUBG ¥k A
FBhE16.5% (ZF T )\ 17.5%) 515 -

NEZZNENH T ANH > BB
TEB B NERAGH RE > i
FRN ) ZEZIRBAE M > SEF
A B H17.5%00 1K £16.5% © B I >
FWAHBEHRIEERE_FEZNE=A
=+ — B kAR R A RE SRR i A 3%
16.5% (ZFF J\4E : 17.5%) 55 ©

T G Al ) 3 A0 L A 2 B R TG 2 07 A
) I A P B R G o
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8. Finance Costs

Interest on:
Bank borrowings wholly repayable
within five years

Bank borrowings not wholly repayable

within five years
Obligation under a finance lease

The charge comprises:
Hong Kong Profits Tax
Current year
Overprovision in prior years

Other jurisdictions

Deferred tax (note 18):
Current year
Attributable to a change in tax rate

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r5 B 3 3R & Mi 5

BREZZZNEZH =4 —HILEE

2009 2008
T#n T
HK$’000 HK$'000
3,043 2,908
336 372

68 =

3,447 3,280
2009 2008
T#n T
HK$’000 HK$’000
2,517 4,660
(79) (462)
2,438 4,198
361 4,960
2,799 9,158
(7,374) (939)
(32) =
(4,607) 8,219

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2008: 17.5%) of the estimated

assessable profit for the year.

On 26th June, 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed the Revenue Bill
2008 which reduced corporate profits tax rate from 17.5% to 16.5% effective
from the year of assessment 2008/2009. Therefore, Hong Kong Profits Tax is
calculated at 16.5% (2008: 17.5%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the

relevant jurisdictions.
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9. BiMH (4)

M8 5558/99/M 5% 15 4 » M8 % ¥ 4wk it
BT Z WY A ] (R824 [58/99/MA ] 1) W]
G SR A SR BE R BT AR AL o BT R 2
58/99/M%x B A i il L ') A 4= Oy ) 63 65
JE fih ©

LA I A B e ik B B il B
MR A R AR (TR AR ])
il BE 28 IhE 2 A PR A R (Tl B2 )
1 3 7 7R IR S A R A W (Tl B v ) %
B it BRI BT T3 R S5 R IR A PR A 7
(2RI ) v A B A8 28 ) A48 47 e
HE AR A v [ A 3 A5 L o T Lk AR
AP T Y S — 2 v R A 3 A ([
BEEEHD -

5 T M~ W BE R R R BRI R F
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A H B i 3 T AR B o S 7R R R A
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AR _ERHE-H -HRE_FZF
CEFZHZE+— H R p AR
75 58 U0 2l 18 2K o 1l B A v R B A BR A
(a0l B8 ) v 1) B 35 v IR 5 A PR ]
(MHRzEMmE ) RE&E R LETZA
=4 — H kA A T R 4 R v R
A 3 T 5 50 45 RS R 3R 18% S 27% o I A
SE P 1B 32 9 N % B B R R
HEE o

RZBELCEZTTAH - HEARE S
B A 638 M M I A 2 B A5 B
wBAHEmD R _2REET AN
H o o 1] 120 2 It A A0 39 3 491 =2 Bt A )
A T MR R 3 ) B 8 B A1 50018 B A
RZ N> HBRMGH ZRF)N\E - 2
FRNE B FE F-—HER
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HE B 1 Y 2 A ) A A B B
> HARBLRNG I R25% o AR IR ) K
B AR > ZEH279%BE R BB Z A ] Z B
RY RN\ FE—H— Hil ¥ A25% -

E RN = IR

9. Taxation (Continued)

Under Decree Law No0.58/99/M, a Macau company incorporated under that
Law (called “58/99/M company”) is exempted from Macau complementary tax
(Macau income tax) as long as the 58/99/M company does not sell its products
to a Macau resident company.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, Jili 5 % mal 5 Rf 8
HRAFR (“#p5aE"), Shantou Yingko Fashion Company Limited (“Shantou
Yingko”), Shantou Yungao Fashion Company Limited (“Shantou Yungao”) and
Meko Fashion (Zhuhai-Macau Cross Boarder Industrial Zone, Zhuhai) Company
Limited (“Zhuhai Meko”) are entitled to exemption from the PRC enterprise
income tax (“EIT”) for two years commencing from their first profit-making year
of operation and to 50% relief from the PRC EIT for the next three years (“Tax
Holiday”).

# i3, Shantou Yungao and Zhuhai Meko entered into their first profit-
making in 2008. Therefore, they were exempted from PRC EIT for the twelve-
month period ended 31st December, 2008 and 2009. Shantou Yingko's first
profit-making year was 2003. Accordingly, Shantou Yingko is subject to a
50% relief from PRC EIT from 1st January, 2005 to 31st December, 2007. Jlli g
I IR AR (“WBEAIF”) and Dong Guan Dico Fashion Company Limited
(“Dong Guan Dico”) are entitled to a preferential PRC EIT rate of 18% and 27%
respectively for the twelve-month ended 31st December, 2007. The PRC EIT
charges are arrived at after taking into account these tax incentives.

On 16th March, 2007, the PRC promulgated the Law of the PRC on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “New Law”) by Order No. 63 of the President of the PRC. On
6th December, 2007, the State Council of the PRC issued Implementation
Regulations of the New Law. For companies that were qualified under old
law or regulations for incentive tax rate of 15%, the tax rate was increased
progressively to 18%, 20%, 22%, 24% and 25% in year 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011
and 2012, respectively. For companies that were still under the Tax Holidays
period, the New Law and Implementation Regulations allow the companies
to continue to enjoy the Tax Holidays and the tax rate will change to 25%
afterwards. For companies that were subject to tax rate of 27%, the New Law
and Implementation Regulations changed the tax rate from 27% to 25% from
1st January, 2008.
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9. B (4)

A B2 BUI (A 3 B AR £ A #R

RE-BRIEZA S+ H
9. Taxation (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r5 B 3 3R & Mi 5

The (credit) charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before taxation

&2 BRI 5 A R R per the consolidated income statement as follows:
2009 2008
T TH#oo
HK$'000 HK$'000
¥ 36 iy ¥4 A1 Profit before taxation 13,409 86,145
HWAEBHERBX165% (ZFF Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of
J\AE 2 17.5%) HHSRBLIE 16.5% (2008: 17.5%) 2,212 15,075
T 7 At ) 3 [ ¥ Effect of different tax rate applicable
EHZAMBRZY to operations in other jurisdictions (1,054) (4,105)
HRBLIE N 5 A W1 Fvk BA 3% Tax effect of expenses not deductible
Z BIE Y 2 for tax purposes 669 461
BN & M ZE B Tax effect of income not taxable
ZBLIEFY for tax purposes (20) (39)
B FHY S i v AR R Utilisation of tax losses previously
Z BLIE s 1H not recognised (4,996) (576)
TE R S I B AR W Recognition of deferred tax assets
5 S0 Tt T previously not recognized (435) =
I A T R R A A I O P 2R 2 Tax effect of deferred tax assets
i e 2 not recognised - 382
W A R B T e 1R P A 2 2 Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 1,857 2,217
Tl T g 2B
140 4% A2 75 Y £ £ R Decrease in opening deferred tax liability
TR AR T I A resulting from a decrease in applicable
tax rate (32) -
A JHC Al ] R [ 4 S B Tax effect of tax exemption granted
T TE B H0 =2 0 T i 2 to operations in other jurisdictions (2,729) (4,734)
ML AR BE R AR A Overprovision in prior years (79) (462)
AR ERFIE (FEA) X Tax (credit) charge for the year (4,607) 8,219
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10. A 4F % i Al

10. Profit for the Year

2009 2008
Tt R
HK$’000 HKS$'000
AR B ¥ A AR (BEA) Profit for the year has been arrived
TH&H : at after charging (crediting):
B T A B Employee benefits expenses
(BFEEFEME) - (including directors’ emoluments):
5 T % H A 15 ) Salaries and other benefits 202,265 185,739
VLB 4 el 2 A A Share based payments 560 1,356
AR AR A F 8 A Retirement benefits scheme contributions 11,458 6,775
214,283 193,870
T A L K T Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 375 246
A% LT T 4 Auditors’ remuneration 1,761 1,882
MER AP X 2 Cost of inventories recognised
TEEA (HfiE) as expenses (Note) 318,376 262,835
Wi~ B R Z AT Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment 31,704 24,688
FlE A Interest income (104) (174)
HERE - EERSHZIEL Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 9203 1,200
LIRS (Mezs) Net exchange loss (gain) 3,251 (6,297)
HERA (BFERTAKZZH) Rental income, with negligible outgoings (2,555) (3,392)

Bt o WERR 2 B X X 17 F AR LS B
HEf1,879,000¥ 70 (Z T )\ 4 :
17 B M fl 2 #8191 2,470,000% J6) ©
17 15 A 4 2 48 o] 4% 8 8 1
I 5 B A R R T -

Note: Cost of inventories recognised as expenses included allowance for

inventories of HK$1,879,000 (2008: reversal of allowance for inventories of

HK$2,470,000). The reversal of allowance for inventories was recognised in

the consolidated income statement on subsequent sales of the inventories..
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11. Directors’ Emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the five (2008: five) directors were

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r5 B 3 3R & Mi 5

For the year ended 31st March, 2009

11. #HEME

A S A T (=T T )\AE : TifL) #

FEANZHEWT : as follows:
ZEFME 2009
LS p Bagik
Mr.Cheng #EHLL Mr.Cheng LS BikiEik
Chung Man,  Ms.Lam Chung  Mr.Yang Mr.Yeung GE
Johnny  Yuk Sum Hoo WeiTak  Wing Kay Total
T#T T T T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ik Fees - - 100 80 100 280
A4 Other emoluments
B R Salaries and allowances 1,560 660 - - - 2,220
SRR Btk Retirement benefits scheme
contributions 12 12 - - - 24
[EF Total emoluments 1,572 672 100 80 100 2,524
ZRE)\4E 2008
LS 3 WoREERE
Mr.Cheng #EFHKL+E Mr.Cheng HikfiE Bkl
Chung Man,  Ms.Lam Chung  Mr.Yang Mr.Yeung Gk
Johnny  Yuk Sum Hoo WeiTak  Wing Kay Total
T#T T T T Tt T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Mg Fees - - 100 80 100 280
HAbm 4 Other emoluments
Hi o Rl Salaries and allowances 1,560 660 - - - 2,220
SRR A a3 ek Retirement benefits scheme
contributions 12 12 - - - 24
R Total emoluments 1,572 672 100 80 100 2,524

MEHEERKE RRIER FEN
EZH = H R AR B AR T T 4 o

No directors waived any emoluments during the year ended 31st March, 2009
and 2008.
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12. IREM A&

A AR BE N > T 5 5 8N L AL — o
(BN ~#HF) KA HEF
A B ST < S RORY b ST B
T AL (ZFF AR 2 AL e # A L
B

Wi~ DUy 2 BE B Z A A
B e A
AR PR A 2 3tk

T % R AR B > Lk g AL AR BRI 4
441,000,000 I5

TAAKE B TR A AP IRZ B,

ZER U B A B0 23 il
(ZFF)\4 : Fko.swsAl)
ST\ BRI S A 0.9 Al
(ZFFNE: ZFFLERE
AR B BB B .0 Al

BREZZZNEZH =4 —HILEE

12. Employees’ Emoluments

During the year, the five highest paid individuals included one director

(2008: one director) of the Company whose emoluments are included in the

disclosures in note 11 above. The emoluments of the remaining four (2008:

four) highest paid individuals were as follows:

2009 2008
T¥#T Two0
HK$'000 HK$'000

Salaries, share based payments
and other benefits 3,377 3,450
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 48 47
3,425 3,497

The emoluments of each of the above employees were less than HK$1,000,000

for both years.

13. Dividends

2009 2008
T#n R
HK$’000 HK$’000
Dividends recognised as distribution
during the year:
2009 interim dividend of HK0.2 cent
(2008: HK0.8 cent) per share 3,690 15,882
2008 final dividend of HK0.9 cent
(2008: 2007 final dividend of
HK1.0 cent) per share 13,510 17,745
17,200 33,627
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1 3. Hﬁ JE\ (I%)

REEZZFN\ER_RFNLEZA
=t HIREER > OR_FFLE
B ZBF \AERMBE R ZFF/)\F
H e S 9 DABARRL o % 5 DABEAR
B O RS WO AR - W
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13. Dividends (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r5 B 3 3R & Mi 5

During the year ended 31st March, 2008 and 2009, scrip dividends were offered
in respect of the 2007 and 2008 final dividends and 2008 interim dividend.
These scrip dividends were accepted by the majority of shareholders, as follows:

2009 2008 2008 2007
vh A th AR
Interim Final Interim Final
T TF¥Ho0 Tt F¥#T
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$'000

BE : Dividends:
B4 Cash 3,690 4,688 4,314 4,970
DL JBEAR S 738 45 Scrip alternative - 8,822 11,568 12,775
3,690 13,510 15,882 17,745

HREAERUBSIRE R IR
B B0 28 Al » A 3£3,690,0009 I > HfE
JELA I SR AE M e R RO 4R R B -
Ji IAEE o

14. FBRERN

The 2009 final dividend of HKO0.2 cent per share totalling HK$3,690,000 in
cash has been proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by the
shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

14. Earnings Per Share

2009 2008
B Earnings:
ARAE BER ) Bt v S5 I Ak Profit for the year and earnings for
LR 2 B A the purposes of basic and diluted
earnings per share HK$18,016,000 5T HK$77,926,000% 70
e Number of shares:
B A AR 2 A 2 3 Weighted average number of
TRET-3 9 ordinary shares for the purposes
of basic earnings per share 1,805,590,525 1,699,123,467
Sl PG W 2 B YA M Effect of dilutive potential ordinary

ZHE (Wit)

shares in respect of share options

(Note) - 7,289,320
LR R R A Weighted average number of
TORET-3 9 ordinary shares for the purposes
of diluted earnings per share - 1,706,412,787
HfaE - B AS 2 7 B RE =2 AT 46 A 8 Note: No diluted earnings per share has been presented because the exercise

BEZZFMFE=ZA=1+—H
AR B 2 P 3 T AR A > WSl S
Eviknyle SRR

price of the Company’s options was higher than the average market price for
shares for the year ended 31st March, 2009.
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15. HEHEW*E

AR
RoEFRBENH —H
LN A FAEAE ETE

RoRENE=ZA=1T—H
RS - W Rk A
AN TR AR A

RE-RBAME=ZA=+—H

MRBEE_ZZALRE=ZHA=1+—HIL4
BE > —IHAR G B I A R a2
Wi B vl MRS HH Z AP EAE %
18,500,000%5 JG °

AEBEB{EDER _ZRNULEZA
Z=t—H-ZFZANFE=ZA=Z1T—HK
RS B H 2 4 AR % A 4 B2 A 4 1) Sif
308 R oL 2 ) S A TS A A A AR — K
- 3 A 307 A % S BT A PR A R AT
ZAG AR EE B o 5 — K B A IO A 4 %
S JE I A7 IR 2 ] 2% Al i R 2R €7 €7 H > S
BEA 00 M EL R S A b R R
Tl 2 REBG o 3% A5 2 75 B2 A 7] o 26
stk 9L F 2 7 4 36 2 i 5 32 5 A A% A
o ZHEW AT EAWD TR AR K
AR -

A 4 B 2 B 3 A A 9 > 3 DL
RO A o A 52 H 2 Wik TR 4 36 AR
BREEMEHRAZ AW RN > B
JA A AR AR A SRR > I 4 8 % B 48 4
g/ E

E RN = IR

15. Investment Properties

AR
HK$'000

FAIR VALUE
At 1st April, 2007 52,260
Increase in fair value during the year 7,740
At 31st March, 2008 60,000
Transfer to property, plant and equipment (18,500)
Decrease in fair value during the year (9,510)
At 31st March, 2009 31,990

During the year ended 31st March, 2009, an investment property was
transferred to property, plant and equipment at fair value of HK$18,500,000 at
the date of transfer, upon the commencement of owner-occupation.

The fair value of the Group's investment properties at 31st March, 2009, 31st
March, 2008 and the date of transfer have been arrived at on the basis of a
valuation carried out on that date by Savills Valuation and Professional Services
Limited, independent qualified professional valuers not connected with the
Group. Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited are members of the
Institute of Valuers, and have appropriate qualifications and recent experiences
in the valuation of similar properties in the locations. The valuation was arrived
at by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties in
the same locations and conditions. The decrease in fair value of these properties
has been charged to the consolidated income statement.

The investment properties of the Group are situated in Hong Kong and are held
under medium-term operating leases. All of the Group's property’s interests
held under operating leases to earn rental are measured using the fair value
model and are classified and accounted for as investment properties.
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4r5 B 75 3R & Mi 5

For the year ended 31st March, 2009

16. £ - Wm Kk i

ML
fRIR kT HERTEE  RERRG  REREE  WAERA i
Leasehold
Construction landand  Leasehold  Plantand Furniture and Office Motor ait
inprogress  buildings improvements  machinery fixtures  equipment vehicles Total
Tz T T Tz T T T T
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
COST OR VALUATION
At 1t April, 2007 21N 11,790 79,546 16,841 20,623 10438 3,763 165,172
Exchange realignment 1,019 1,802 3,251 1.941 38 4 130 83812
Additions 10,576 - 17,37 8,872 1,357 1,761 - 39,803
Disposals - - (9.229) (1133) (377) (100) - (10,839)
Reclassification (31,105) 30,628 - 90 387 - - -
Surplus arising on revaluation - 3321 - - - - - 3327
At 31st March, 2008 2,661 47,547 90,805 26611 2318 12,440 3,893 206,275
Exchange realignment 59 1,702 (3,074) 1290 (211) (301) 40 (495)
Additions 2201 19,481 28,065 5,66 4113 1,259 1633 62,038
Disposals - - (11418) (3,655) (1,097) (1,936) (1,145) (19,251)
Reclassification (4,941) 4724 - 104 13 - - -
Transfer from investment
properties - 18,500 - - - - - 18,500
Deficit arising on revaluation - (6,161) - - - - - (6,161)
At 31st March, 2009 - 85,793 104378 29616 25,36 11462 440 260,906
Comprising:
At cost = - 104,378 29,616 25,236 11,462 44 175,113
At valuation - 2009 - 85,793 - - - - - 85793
- 85,793 104,378 29616 25,36 11,462 4421 260906
DEPRECIATION
At 1st April, 2007 - - 58,180 13112 13,579 7713 2803 95,387
Exchange realignment - 9 2870 1299 01 239 88 4726
Provided for the year - 1300 16,615 2,697 2154 1590 33 24688
Eliminated on disposals - - (7879) (1,094) (308) (100) - (9,381)
Write back on revaluation - (1309) - - - - - (1309
At 31st March, 2008 - - 69,786 16,014 15,646 9442 3223 114111
Exchange realignment - 8 2779 7% (208) (279) 3 (2439)
Provided for the year - 2827 20,032 4,268 2,655 1,356 566 31,704
Eliminated on disposals - - (10,515) (3,581) (800) (1,920) (1,145) (17,961)
Write back on revaluation - (2,835) - - - - - (2,835)
At 315t March, 2009 - - 76,524 17497 17,293 8,599 2,667 122,580
CARRYING VALUES
At 31st March, 2009 - 85,793 27,854 12,119 7,943 2863 1,754 138,326
At 31st March, 2008 2,661 47547 21,019 10,597 6,672 2,998 670 92,164
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16. A E ~ WG Kk il () 16. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

VW EEs¥-s MpE R HEEEYUELAYE  The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a

DL TR R straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:
FH Al S 5 FRAS TR B 45

Leasehold land and buildings Over the remaining term of lease

A B AR e 20% sk #%2 #1654 ) (DA S 35 4 )

Leasehold improvements 20% or over the terms of the leases, whichever is shorter
T e W 45

Plant and machinery 25%

EICYE S

Furniture and fixtures 20%

NS ]

Office equipment 33"/3%

¥

Motor vehicles 20%

frd ESCHi R DR A A 2 HE - The carrying value of leasehold land and buildings held under medium-term

Hb % Ad o 2 R TH A 4 leases shown above comprises:
2009 2008
Tt Tt
HK$’000 HK$'000

DL Situated:

s In Hong Kong 27,134 12,210
LA Outside Hong Kong 58,659 35,337
85,793 47,547

ALEEMGHME L XTI _REFIE  The leasehold land and buildings of the Group were revalued at 31st March,
EAZFHERZZFNFE=ZA=Z+— 2009 and 31st March, 2008 by Savills Valuation and Professional Services
HE B o S 2R Al (AR SR — KPS T A Limited, independent professional valuers, on an open market value basis.

B Te B 3 o P A L 4 ) 4% 4 B T B

HEAT A o

WH Z JRT 1,754,000 C IE LB E  The net book value of motor vehicles of HK$1,754,000 includes an amount of
ME A X8R Z 4 %11,385,000% 70 (= HK$1,385,000 (2008: nil) in respect of assets held under a finance lease.
RN ) -

il AL B 4 M M O AT AY > WAL If leasehold land and buildings had not been revalued, they would have been
EhmREMTHTEELRAEMRE  included in these consolidated financial statements at historical cost less
T T #78,970,000% 7T ( — B F )\ 4 ¢ accumulated depreciation of HK$78,970,000 (2008: HK$40,233,000).
40,233,0009570) 71 AL 5 5 A B B R 3K o
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17.  FAHHL B K IEH 17. Prepaid Lease Payments
A Z FEA A AR IH A The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise:
2009 2008
Tt T
HK$'000 HK$'000
S 1 - Leasehold land in Hong Kong:
A Medium-term lease 3,416 3,507
BTN L Leasehold land outside Hong Kong:
L Medium-term lease 12,600 6,140
16,016 9,647
2O Z T ¢ Analysed for reporting purpose as:
W) Current asset 440 254
I B Non-current asset 15,576 9,393
16,016 9,647
18. EREBIIH 18. Deferred Taxation

T 30 R AR SR T R B IR B 3 A i 4 1 D The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised by the
W REIEMERHE A (A A%  Group and movements thereon during the current and prior reporting periods:

[/
AEH R
BimE  WAERERE R Unrealised At
Revaluation of Accelerated tax Tax profit on
properties  depreciation losses inventories Total
Tl Tl T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A%EH The Group
RZFFLFENA—H At 1st April, 2007 (5,193) 1,684 1,908 1,454 (147)
REFARARE S (Charge) credit to consolidated
() 32) A income statement (1,319) (396) 381 2,273 939
AERS R Charge to equity (1,059) - = = (1,059)
e i 7 5 Exchange differences = 276 = = 276
REZZNE=ZA=+—H At31st March, 2008 (7,571) 1,564 2,289 3,727 9
R AWATRE (Charge) credit to consolidated
(F)32) it A income statement 2,093 (893) 4,946 1,228 7374
AR A A Credit to equity 122 - - - 122
HE B 2% Exchange differences (37) (34) (247) = (318)
BIREH 2 5% Effect of change in tax rate
— REEABABRESFA - credit (charge) to consolidated
(313%) income statement 343 (98) = (213) 32
— WHERR A - credit to equity 43 - - - 43
REZZFNEZA=+—H  At31st March, 2009 (5,007) 539 6,988 4,742 7,262
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18. JEIEBLH (4)

R AR AR o A TR B
B KB AR TARE o T 3CR I
T 5 2 308 S0E 58 L 465 B 40 A

BB G A
B AR

M-REAE=ZA=Z+—H > ARLEEA
B 1K 8 2R 2 ¥ A 1 1% AR Y A B 48 %
78,849,000% 7t (—F & J\ 4 : 69,705,000
W J0) o A4 M B #42,352,0009 6 ( =
F % )\4E 113,080,000 JC) Z Bl IH i HH
T 0 AR A 50 T o P R R B TR R 2R
i ) 2 VR > T S A A R TR R B A
JH Ji5 16136,497,0009 6 ( =R F )\ 4 ¢
56,625,000 7€) i 78 4% A& B T & 7 o R
MERBEEEGFH R 2R NEE
FWE(ZEREN\E : ZFRAEE
F— =) B W] 29,397,000 00 (ZFE
JUAE :12,705,000% J6) JG 1 o H At )5 17
A JHE PR 4% 0 o

MREERUE=ZH=1—H > AEMZ
W] HIRE BT I 25 R 4 %5 2,220,000 08 (=&
)\ 1 2,635,000%0) © £ 7% 5% 7 Bl
R 2B P > TR 2,220,000 58
(ZFF )« ) TR B RBLIH -
MoERNE=ZH=4—H > WEHRHE
fi%2,635,000%5 JC 7] $11 Bi W 57 2% A E 2 AR
HE LI E o

MR P BB B >t RN E—H—
HR > v I B8 2 v sk o e B 3 ) = R
BB A AL - B BT IE
— A —H %M Z B R BT A A0 R
Z B 7518,830,000% 6 ( ZFF N
4R 1 7,740,000 78) o WA EE M A BE D
7 1 488 1m0 W IR 2 A 2 IR T R T SR R
A T A 0 WO R AR A B
A A A I A o

RE RN RSN

18. Deferred Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of balance sheet presentation, certain deferred tax assets
and liabilities have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax
balances for financial reporting purposes:

2009 2008

BRI TF¥I0

HK$’000 HKS$'000

Deferred tax assets 12,283 7,580
Deferred tax liabilities (5,021) (7,571)
7,262 9

At 31st March, 2009, the Group has unused tax losses of HK$78,849,000 (2008:
HK$69,705,000) available for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of HK$42,352,000 (2008: HK$13,080,000) of such
losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
unused tax losses of HK$36,497,000 (2008: HK$56,625,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are
losses of HK$9,397,000 (2008: HK$12,705,000) that will expire in 2009 to 2014
(2008: 2009 to 2013). Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At 31st March, 2009, the Group has deductible temporary differences of
approximately HK$2,220,000 (2008: HK$2,635,000). A deferred tax asset has
been recognised in relation to HK$2,220,000 (2008: nil) of such deductible
temporary difference. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to
remaining deductible temporary difference of HK$2,635,000 as at 31st March,
2008.

Under the New Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared
in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1st January, 2008 onwards.
Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable to accumulated
profits of the PRC subsidiaries generated after 1st January, 2008 amounting
to HK$18,830,000 (2008: HK$7,740,000) as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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19. 78 19. Inventories

2009 2008
T 0 T#0
HK$’000 HK$'000
JE R Raw materials 9,768 23,542
e 5 Work in progress 26,752 33,925
BB Finished goods 157,980 137,099
194,500 194,566

20. JEWHE 5k IE K H 20. Trade and Other Receivables

ES
1 & ¢!

HE WL sk I 2009 2008
T#0 T#0
HK$'000 HK$'000
JEW 5 K JE Trade receivables 27,705 40,149
L At WSOk TR Other receivables 9,126 9,100
JE W B2 ik T e L il B WAk T 4 A Total trade and other receivables 36,831 49,249

A A ) it H 4 B HE o E W R E T 44 30 The Group allows 30 to 60 days credit period for receivables from sales counters
HEOHZfEEH s MATMHBEFZ and an average credit period of 60 to 120 days to its wholesale customers. The
FHFEERMAF60H FE120H o PRAH E following is an aged analysis of trade receivables at the reporting date:

H > HEWH 5k H Z SR 4 A in F

2009 2008
T#x TW#IT

HK$’000 HK$'000

30HN Within 30 days 19,724 27,308
31—60H 31-60 days 7,127 9,845
61—90H 61-90 days 174 1,287
790 H Over 90 days 680 1,709

27,705 40,149
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20. JEWCH 5 sk H K& b
W W sk I (4)

% A T e A BT L BE % P R o B e
B R P 2B AL o DLRT AL B AE
FPRZERMRI - WiT €% P 265 8
BE o AR @ S G WA R AR fFZ
FERGEEHE CPEMBEERTE
FZAG BHE - RATEH »97% (%%
JNAE © 920%) 2 W W BT 2 MR Ak ol I i 49
30 H B A o AR 2 ME W BT S AR IE
o FE AL B RAF - T i 25 N 3 9 K BB A
FLEk o

AR T 2 R WL BT B ok T AL R AR R H
160 1) 2 JRE Wk TEL % R TH 854,000 % JC
(= F % )\4E 1 2,996,000% J0) » A4 H|
0128 L e 0 = = R N Y L
% SR A AR AT HE A o

61—90H
91—120H

frat

21. fEIRHR AT A

R T K A A R M — R SR AT AL
ZHE T BRAT ZAKIE o W AF K T T A
VLA T T SR AT A B o MO U I
B MRREFNE=ZA=Z+—HZOHK
AT ok 2 5 E 1R % = M A 5 DA
T o AR A154% ( ZF R )\ 4
2.62% ) Z Il E - F) & o

A

20. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

Before accepting any new wholesale customers, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality by investigating their historical credit record
and define credit limits by customer. Credit sales are made to customers with
a satisfactory trustworthy credit history. Credit limits attributed to customers
are reviewed regularly. At the balance sheet date, 97% (2008: 92%) of the trade
receivables that are neither past due nor impaired. In the opinion of Directors,
the trade receivables are of good credit quality and the debtors did not have
any default payment history,

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors with aggregate
carrying amount of HK$854,000 (2008: HK$2,996,000) which are past due at the
reporting date for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

2009 2008

T#n T

HK$'000 HK$'000

61-90 days 174 1,287
91-120 days 680 1,709
Total 854 2,996

21. Pledged Bank Deposit

The amount represents deposit pledged to a bank to secure general banking
facilities of the Group. The deposit was pledged to secure short-term bank
borrowings and was therefore classified as a current asset. The pledged bank
deposit had original maturity of three months or less as at 31st March, 2009.
The deposit carried fixed interest rate of 1.54% (2008: 2.62%) per annum.
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22. WITHGERBE HIK
WRITE X

A ) 2 SRAT A5 A7 TR BUAT SRAT A AR AE
R A F0.001%F1.54% ( = F F )\ 4
0.01%%2.62%) 7 B » J AT I B % =M A
BT -

AR SRAT 7B S 0 B B4R B R A F-5.25%
#6.25% (ZFFJ\4E : 5.25%%7.00%) 7
B e

MRoREFNE=ZA=Z+—H > AEEZ
JE A B B ik T S At JE A sk I A 6 E A
B 5 # T %510,529,000% 6 ( = F T )\
4E 1 9,006,000% 7C) © HEN B 5 sk Z MR
BT T -

30HN
31—60H
61—90H
90 H

A5 [ A B2 5 I e LA B R T 4 )
Z Yy R I W DA Ah £ R 2 4 i
S 8

RoBBAESA=A—H
e 2 JC SV ENE
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22. Bank Balances and Cash/Secured Bank Overdrafts

The Group’s bank deposits carry interest rate at prevailing bank deposits rates
ranging from 0.001% to 1.54% (2008: 0.01% to 2.62%) per annum and have an
original maturity of three months or less.

The secured bank overdrafts carry effective interest rate ranged from 5.25% to
6.25% (2008: 5.25% to 7.00%) per annum.

23. Trade and Other Payables

At 31st March, 2009, included in the Group’s trade and other payables were
trade payables of HK$10,529,000 (2008: HK$9,006,000). Details of the aged
analysis of trade payables are as follows:

2009 2008

T#x TH#T

HK$’000 HK$'000

Within 30 days 6,731 7,322
31 - 60 days 1,905 572
61 - 90 days 843 1,034
Over 90 days 1,050 78
10,529 9,006

The amount of the Group's trade payables denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the relevant group entities are set out below:

VI RBESHIE VL H B GHE
Denominated in
RMB Yen
T¥#IT T
HK$'000 HK$’000
At 31st March, 2009 429 60
At 31st March, 2008 945 176
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24. KM 6 & 24. Secured Bank Borrowings

2009 2008
T# TH#T
HK$’000 HK$'000
AT HK Bank loans 54,476 47,102
#E K Import loans 1,669 11,313
56,145 58,415
A G SRATAE B T - The maturity of secured bank borrowings is as follows:
2009 2008
T T#x
HK$’000 HK$'000
JRE A MRk Z MR THIAH - Carrying amount repayable:
RN Within one year 45,429 44,900
—4E D) _AE S R i 4R More than one year but not exceeding
two years 2,831 2,686
WIAE DL _EAEAS i = 4 More than two years but not exceeding
three years 2,276 2,790
SR, RE A B D4R More than three years but not exceeding
four years 2,219 2,265
PY4E DL B AB R A LA More than four years but not exceeding
five years 2,252 2,253
Fik: ) o More than five years 1,138 3,521
56,145 58,415
W E AR T R Less: Amounts due within one year shown
—ENB M 2 &% under current liabilities (45,429) (44,900)
10,716 13,515
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24. A IRHPERAT K () 24. Secured Bank Borrowings (Continued)

ARG R EBEN R (BT HFREM  The Group has floating rate borrowings which carry effective interest rates

) I F1.15%%6.24% ( = T T )\ 4 : (which are also equal to contracted interest rates) ranging from 1.15% to 6.24%
2.6% % 5.5%) Z [ Z 7 B A R AG o (2008: 2.6% to 5.5%) per annum.

DABEMARZhEEEW I 2EY%  The Group’s bank borrowings that are denominated in a currency other than
A 2 ASE I SRAT A B E the functional currency of the relevant group entities are set out as below:

VA A ElEHA

Denominated in Yen

Tt

HK$’000

W _FBFNE=ZH=1+—H At 31st March, 2009 =

RoRFNE=ZH=1+—H At 31st March, 2008 10,221

AT B AREEE T & E LK (K The bank borrowings are secured by certain assets of the Group (see note 30).
#£30) ©

25. RhEME R 25. Obligation under a Finance Lease

RIKHEHHZ B
S L 0 Present value
Minimum of minimum
lease payments lease payments
2009 2008 2009 2008
Tt T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REALE T Z A 0H Amounts payable under
a finance lease:
—EN Within one year 318 - 230 -
—AEDL_F AR AR i 4 In more than one year but
not more than two years 318 - 251 -
A LA A In more than two years but
not more than five years 743 - 674 -
1,379 - 1,155 -
W KRR E LA Less: future finance charges (224) - - -
& A& 2 BUE Present value of lease obligation 1,155 - 1,155 -
W —ERBEE S AR Less: Amount due for settlement
(RBEEHTFR) within one year (shown
under current liabilities) (230) -
—ERBHHZ SR Amount due for settlement
after one year 925 -

2 45 [ D), il AL O SRR — IR The Group leased a motor vehicle under a finance lease. The lease term is 5
I T4 - BhEFIE/RIE T ZMBIFE  years. Interest rate underlying the obligation under a finance lease is fixed at
O & 5 A AR H AR FE contract date. The effective interest rate is 8.29% (2008: nil) per annum.

8.29% (ZFE )\ : fiE) o
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Wi (BB E0.0197T)

HRE

HEFFLENH—H -

“EFFNERZEFFIE

=H=+—H
CEBITRERE -
WoFZELENA—H
PRI Ao I i 4T A
(MfET)
PR B 4 e B 35 47 I8 4y
(Hf7t2)

REFFNEFE=ZA=1+—H
PRI A7 658 D fe W i 3% 47 e 4 (MY i 3)

PR B 4 B 8 i 3 AT M

(MfiE4)

REFFAMME=ZHA=1—H

S
B

—_

82

MERE_FZENE=ZH=1+—
H ik 4¢ B 1 [ > 10,800,000 %
2,000,000 Ji# % A 43 3] # 45: /Bt 0.162
WIT ) 0.255W JCAT > BUFEAR A
7] ¥ 17 A 4£12,800,000 B 45 B
H0.01 ¥ 70 Z T 48 B o

N_FEZELHETALAR_FER
JAEZHZ A s RAHE SR
DL J0.255% J6 5 0.275% JG »
B 4T I L % A 3650,099,676 8 K
42,063,926 /B 45 /B T {0.01 W 6 Z
W > URB R EEKRY
B _BZ)\FHYBERE -

BREZZZNEZH=1—HILEE

26. Share Capital

S iilie e
Number of fE A
ordinary shares Value
T#IT
HK$'000
Ordinary shares at HK$0.01 each
Authorised:
At 1st April, 2007, 31st March,
2008 and 2009
10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid:
At 1st April, 2007 1,662,700,000 16,627
Issue of shares upon exercise of
share options (note 1) 12,800,000 128
Issue of shares in lieu of cash
dividends (note 2) 92,163,602 922
At 31st March, 2008 1,767,663,602 17,677
Issue of shares upon exercise of
share options (note 3) 5,500,000 55
Issue of shares in lieu of cash
dividends (note 4) 71,723,374 717
At 31st March, 2009 1,844,886,976 18,449
Notes:
1. During the year ended 31st March, 2008, 10,800,000 and 2,000,000 share

options were exercised at HK$0.162 and HK$0.255 per share, respectively,

resulting in issue of a total of 12,800,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in

the Company.

2. On 9th October, 2007 and 29th February, 2008, the Company issued and
allotted a total of 50,099,676 ordinary shares and 42,063,926 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each at HK$0.255 and HK$0.275 each, respectively, in lieu of cash
for the 2007 final and 2008 interim dividends.
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26. A (4F)

Witk : (4)

3. MBREZZZNE=A=1+—H
1k 48 B 5 5,500,000 1 B BE . 4%
g B20.162% 0 Z AT B AT 66 » X
i % 47 & 35,500,000 B 2 2 7 4%
BT 16.0.01 ¥ o0 Z 3% 4 Bt o

4, WZZZNETHTHH > KA
W) DL0.123% o B 47 K% Bl B & 3t
71,723,274B B B H {H0.01 ¥ L Z
W > DARE R )4 K
Bak A -

T AR JE P9 R AT 2 B A8 4% 5 THG B IR
ZBUA B 524 [ S A

27. FEIEBLERS

MRBE_ZZRE=ZH=+—H » KE
PR 0 O BT O — O LA
A6 B 4 Ry 2 A8 4> %5 1,300,0009
T (BB ) »

WN_ZFZNET+HTHB > KAFA
Pho.123% Jo AE 1 B AT K B B A 2t
71,723,374 % 4 B T 1£0.01% ¢ Z ¥ M
B> URBZFF)AERNBERE -

MR-ZZLETALARZZZ)\EZ
A=+ B > A2 F 4 5l 4% 5 B0.255
W ot 0.275% o 0 B AT KB B A I
50,099,676 % 42,063,926 /% 4 W T i
001 MM » URB_ZFFT LA
KK —FF ) AEPHBLE R -

B

A AR BEN > A 48 AR 9 A AL 6 3 A
ZHMTFHEWT ¢

B KA B H
SR SR IH
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26. Share Capital (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

3. During the year ended 31st March, 2009, 5,500,000 share options were
exercised at HK$0.162 per share, resulting in issue of a total of 5,500,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company.

4. On 15th October, 2008, the Company issued and allotted a total of
71,723,374 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at HK$0.123, in lieu of cash
for the 2008 final dividend.

The shares issued during the year rank pari passu with the then existing shares
in all respects.

27. Major Non-cash Transactions

During the year ended 31st March, 2009, the Group entered into a finance lease
in respect of the acquisition of a motor vehicle with a total capital value at the
inception of the lease of HK$1,300,000 (2008: nil).

On 15th October, 2008, the Company issued and allotted a total of 71,723,374
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at HK$0.123, in lieu of cash for the 2008 final
dividend.

On 9th October, 2007 and 29th February, 2008, the Company issued and
allotted a total of 50,099,676 ordinary shares and 42,063,926 ordinary shares of
HKS$0.01 each at HK$0.255 and HK$0.275 each, respectively, in the Company in
lieu of cash for the 2007 final and 2008 interim dividends.

28. Operating Leases

During the year, the Group made rental payments for buildings under operating
leases as follows:

2009 2008

Ti#L T#T

HK$’000 HK$'000

Minimum lease payments 175,214 162,017
Contingent rental payments 12,914 14,553
188,128 176,570
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28. Operating Leases (Continued)

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as
follows:

2009 2008

Ti#L T#T

HK$'000 HK$'000

Within one year 172,967 144,290
In the second to fifth year inclusive 165,247 170,668
Over five years - 325
338,214 315,283

In addition to these commitments, the Group may pay additional rental
expenses in respect of certain premises which are dependent upon the level of
sales achieved by particular outlets.

Operating lease payments represent rental payable by the Group for certain of
its retail outlets and office properties. Leases are negotiated for an average term
of three years. Certain lease contracts are with contingent rental arrangements.

Property rental income earned during the year was HK$2,555,000 (2008:
HK$3,392,000). The properties generated rental yields of 8% (2008: 6%) on an
ongoing basis. All of the properties held have committed tenants for one year
to two years.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with tenants for the
following future minimum lease payments:

2009 2008

T#t T

HK$’000 HK$'000

Within one year 2,098 872
In the second to fifth year inclusive 757 -

2,855 872
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29. Capital Commitments

2009 2008
Tt T#T
HK$'000 HK$’000
Capital expenditure in respect of the
acquisition of property, plant and
equipment contracted for but not
provided in the consolidated
financial statements - 2,407

30. Pledge of Assets

At the balance sheet date, the following assets were pledged by the Group to
certain banks to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group:

2009 2008

T# T#IT

HK$’000 HK$’000

Investment properties 31,990 60,000
Prepaid lease payments 3,048 3,128
Leasehold land and buildings 25,970 11,014
Short term bank deposit 1,000 1,000
62,008 75,142

31. Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to ordinary resolutions passed at the annual general meeting of the
Company on 17th September, 2003, a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted by the Company for the purpose of providing eligible participants
with the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Company and to
encourage participants to work towards enhancing the value of the Company
and its shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.
All directors, full-time employees and any other persons who, in the sole
discretion of the board of directors of the Company, have contributed or will
contribute to the Group are eligible to participate in the Scheme.

Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Scheme or any other share option scheme adopted by the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue on the date
of adoption.

The Company may renew this 10% limit with shareholders’ approval provided

that each such renewal may not exceed 10% of the shares in the Company in
issue as at the date of the shareholders’ approval.
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31. Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The total number of shares of the Company which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme or
any other share option scheme adopted by the Company must not exceed 30%
of the shares in issue from time to time.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, the total number of shares of
the Company issued and to be issued upon the exercise of the options granted
to each participant (including both exercised and unexercised options) under
the Scheme or any other share option scheme adopted by the Company in any
12-month period must not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue.

The period within which the options must be exercised will be specified by
the Company at the time of grant. This period must expire no later than 10
years from the date of grant of the options. At the time of grant of the options,
the Company may specify a minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised. The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted within 21 days from the date on which the letter containing the offer
is delivered to that participant and the amount payable on acceptance of an
option is HKS1.

The subscription price for the shares of the Company to be issued upon exercise
of the options shall be no less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
shares of the Company as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange on the date of offer; (ii) the average closing price of the shares
of the Company as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the date of offer;
and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of offer. The
subscription price will be established by the board of directors of the Company
at the time the option is offered to the participants.

No options may be granted under the Scheme after the date of the tenth
anniversary of the adoption of the Scheme.

No options were granted to the directors of the Company during both years.
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AR B AR 4 AR TR AR R 4
H 2 e AR A S I B 2 SR ) o

REE_RBFRESA= T — HILEE
o

it 0 Trefi 4 Bt
Date of grant Vesting period

SRREEL-NPAR CRREELNHARE

“ERLE-AA
18th November, 2003 18th November, 2003

to 17th November, 2007
SEEMEANCE-R  CREWERAS AT

“ER\ERAZAH
21st September, 2004 21st September, 2004

to 20th September, 2008
SBBREITAL CRBAENITARE

“ER)\EAATEA
16th August, 2006 16th August, 2006

to 15th August, 2008
SRBREITAL CRBRENITARE

“Z-FE\ATHH
16th August, 2006 16th August, 2006

to 15th August, 2010
SERLFARNE  CEEUEAARAE

“Z-ZEANAZH
4th June, 2007 4th June, 2007

to 3rd June, 2010
CERLFARNE  CEEUEAARAE

“Z-CHEARZH
4th June, 2007 4th June, 2007

to 3rd June, 2012

SERNGAITAL CRBEAATARE
g AR
18th June, 2008 18th June, 2008
to 17th June, 2011

ZEF)EANTAR ZEZ)EANTARR
“B-ZHAR A
18th June, 2008 18th June, 2008
to 17th June, 2013

WA
Exercisable at
the end of the year
L SRELI LG
Weighted average
exercise price
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31. Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The following table discloses details of options granted under the Scheme held
by employees of the Group and movements in such holdings.

During the year ended 31st March, 2009:

REZBNE REZENE
MA—R  RERA REER RERR SA=R
G ki it it il WA

Exercise Balance Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Outstanding

iid price at during during during at
Exercisable period per share 1.4.2008 the year the year theyear  31.3.2009
(Hit)
(Note)

“RRLE-ATARE 0.16207C 15,000,000
ZRBNET-ATEH HK$0.1620

18th November, 2007
to 17th November, 2009

(5,500,0000 (50,0000 9,000,000

“ERNFAAZT-HE 0.2550%7C 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
o 2y < HK$0.2550

21st September, 2008

to 20th September, 2010

ZEZRN\ENHTABZ 020527 3,600,000 - - (2,400,000 1,200,000

“Z-FEN\ATEA HK$0.2052
16th August, 2008
to 15th August, 2010

“R-FENTARE 020527 3,600,000 - - (2400,000) 1,200,000
e S \Vik it HK$0.2052

16th August, 2010
to 15th August, 2012

“EZ-FEAHNAE 0.1860%C 17,000,000 - - (3,100,000) 13,900,000
“E-CERAZH HK$0.1860

4th June, 2010

to 3rd June, 2012

ZE-TEANNAR 0.1860%7C 17,000,000 - - (3,100,000 13,900,000
ZE-WEAAZH HK$0.1860

4th June, 2012

to 3rd June, 2014

“EERATARE 0.2500%7C - 500,000 - - 500,000
“E-ZENATEH HK$0.2500

18th June, 2011
to 17th June, 2013

ZE-ZERATARE 0.250037C = 500,000 - = 500,000
ZE-REARTLH HKS0.2500

18th June, 2013
to 17th June, 2015

58,200,000 1,000,000  (5,500,000) (11,500,000) 42,200,000

(.1846 0.2500 0.1620 0.1930 0.1870
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31. JEBEHEGHE () 31. Share Option Scheme (Continued)

REREZZFNE=ZH=1T—HIL4E)E  During the year ended 31st March, 2008:

o
REFZLE REZENE
MA—R  RMEER OREER O REER ZA=T-B
4 it #l frf A WAL
Exercise Balance Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Outstanding
gAY Tt s A ) iid price at during during during at
Date of grant Vesting period Exercisable period per share 1.4.2007 the year the year theyear  31.3.2008
(Wit)
(Note)
SEREE-ATAR ZRBEEF-ATARE CEFREL-ALAHE ot620¥k 10300000 - (10300,000) - -
“RRAET-ATER ZRREET-ATLN HK$0.1620
18th November, 2003 18th November, 2003 18th November, 2005
to 17th November, 2005 to 17th November, 2007
CEEEEAATAR ZREEEM-ATARE ZRBLET-ATARE 0.1620#7C 16,500,000 - (5000000 (1,000,000) 15,000,000
“RREET-ATER ZRRAET-ATLN HK$0.1620
18th November, 2003 18th November, 2003 18th November, 2007
to 17th November, 2007 to 17th November, 2009
“ERMEAAST-R CERWMEAACT-RE ZREAEAACT-RE 0.2550%7% 2,000,000 - (2,000,000 - -
“ERREAAZAH “RRNELHZTH HK$0.2550
21st September, 2004 21st September, 2004 21st September, 2006
to 20th September, 2006 to 20th September, 2008
CERNEAACT-R CFEWEAACT-AE CEPUEAASH-HE 0250l 2000000 - - - 2,000,000
“ERNEAAZAH “E-REASER HK$0.2550
21st September, 2004 21st September, 2004 21st September, 2008
to 20th September, 2008 to 20th September, 2010
ZERAEMNAE ZRRAEIAEE ZRRAE)IARE 02052487 3,600,000 - - - 3,600,000
“ZFNENATER “E-REANTIA HK$0.2052
16th August, 2006 16th August, 2006 16th August, 2008
to 15th August, 2008 to 15th August, 2010
ZERNEMNTAE ZRRAEIAEE Z2-3E)IHAEE 020527 3,600,000 - - - 3,600,000
“E-REN\ATER “E-CEARTLR HK$0.2052
16th August, 2006 16th August, 2006 16th August, 2010
to 15th August, 2010 to 15th August, 2012
“RRLERANA “ERLEANNAE “ER-REANNAE 0.1860% T - 18,100,000 - (1,00,000) 17,000,000
“E-RERAZH “E-TERAZH HK$0.1860
4th June, 2007 4th June, 2007 4th June, 2010
to 3rd June, 2010 to 3rd June, 2012
“ERLERANA “ERUEAANAE “F-CHEAANEE 0.1860%TC - 18100000 - (1,100,000 17,000,000
“F-TERAZR “Z-NERAZH HK$0.1860
4th June, 2007 4th June, 2007 4th June, 2012
to 3rd June, 2012 to 3rd June, 2014
38,000,000 36,200,000  (12,800,000)  (3,200,000) 58,200,000
WRERTTE
Exercisable at
the end of the year 15,000,000
it SReliid
Weighted average
exercise price 0.1800 0.1860 0.1765 0.1785 0.1846
ML < B TR IR A1 P9 TR L TG I 5 Note: Cancellation of share options upon the termination of the employment of
Wl 8 © certain employees during the year.
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31. Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The closing price of the Company’s shares at 18th June, 2008 and 4th June,
2007, the date of grant, was HK$0.24 and HK$0.28, respectively.

In respect of the share options exercised during the year, the weighted average
share price on the dates of exercise is HK$0.247 (2008: HK$0.290). During the
year, total consideration received from employees for taking up the options
amounted to HK$35 (2008: HKS$76).

The fair value of the options granted during the year ended 31st March, 2009
measured at the date of grant on 18th June, 2008 was HK$0.07 and HK$0.09 per
option, respectively, for the options exercisable from 18th June, 2011 to 17th
June, 2013 and exercisable from 18th June, 2013 to 17th June, 2015.

The fair value of the options granted during the year ended 31st March, 2008
measured at the date of grant on 4th June, 2007 was HK$0.12 and HK$0.13
per option, respectively, for the options exercisable from 4th June, 2010 to 3rd
June, 2012 and exercisable from 4th June, 2012 to 3rd June, 2014.

The following significant assumptions were used to derive the fair values using

B AT 2 AR the Black-Scholes option pricing model:
2009 2008
SE-EAATAR CR-SEAATAR O CE-BERANE CR-CHEAANH
ECRSEAATER ESR-REARTLR BESB-CEARZR ESER-WEAASH
Whif R Lkt %4 3¢ 4 Wi B %4 3¢ 4
Options Options Options Options
exercisable exercisable exercisahle exercisahle
from 18th from 18th from 4th from 4th
June, 2011 to June, 2013 to June, 2010 to June, 2012 to
17th June, 2013 17th June, 2015 3rd June, 2012 3rd June, 2014
k3 t 14 i
TR SR Expected life of options 5 yeas 7 years 5 years 7 years
THERER LW Expected volatility based on
PaNT historical volatility of share prices 55% 69% 60% 69%
ik gk Expected annual dividend yield 6% 6% 6% 6%
AR % Risk-free rate 36% 36% 46% 46%
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31. Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of the
Company'’s share price over the previous 5 to 7 years.

The Group recognised the total expense of HK$560,000 for the year ended 31st
March, 2009 (2008: HK$1,356,000) in relation to share options granted by the
Company.

The Black-Scholes option pricing model has been used to estimate the fair value
of the options. The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value
of the share options are based on the directors’ best estimate. The value of an
option varies with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.
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32. Retirement Benefits Schemes

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) scheme for
qualifying employees of the Company and its subsidiaries in Hong Kong. The
assets of the MPF scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of trustees. The Group contributes at the lower of HK$1,000 or
5% of relevant payroll costs to the MPF scheme, which contribution is matched
by employees.

The Company’s subsidiary operating in Singapore is required to participate
in the Central Provident Fund (“CPF”) scheme. The retirement benefit costs
charged to the consolidated income statement represent contributions to the
CPF scheme by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the CPF scheme.

The Group’s subsidiaries operating in the PRC are also required to make
contributions to state retirement benefit schemes in the PRC. The subsidiaries
are required to contribute a specific percentage of the monthly salaries of the
employees to the relevant schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to these pension schemes is to make the specified
contributions.

The branch of the Group’s subsidiary operating in Taiwan accrues pension cost
equivalent to three percent of employee’s basic salary for the period from 1st
April, 2008 to 30th June, 2008 in accordance with the Labor Standards Law
(“LSL"). Starting from 1st July, 2008, the rate for accrual of pension cost was
changed from three percent to two percent of employees’ basic salary. Pension
fund is deposited in the Bank of Taiwan, a custodian bank for employee pension
fund designated by the government. Effective from 1st July, 2005, the branch
adopted a defined contribution scheme (“New Scheme”) governed by the Labor
Pension Act (“LPA").

The employees who are subject to the Labor Standards Law regulations prior
to the enforcement of LPA may choose to be covered under the New Scheme
or may continue being covered under the pension scheme provided under LSL.
Under the New Scheme, LPA prescribes that the pension contribution rate by an
employer to an employee’s individual pension account per month shall not be
less than six percent of each employee’s monthly salary or wage.
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33. BHEALRY 33. Connected Party Transactions

(i) BEZZZNE=H=1T—HI (i) During the year ended 31st March, 2004, the Group paid rental expenses

A > S AR T R SE T R 1 BR of HK$244,000 toRZEW RMBURMERRZEE (the "RMERRZE
fMeERREAGTRMERR B, formerly known as “JEMZE&E L"), the holding company of a
ZEE ] BRI ]) minority shareholder of Dong Guan Dico, a subsidiary of the Company.
(A 2 ) B JBg 2 W] R Sl i — 44 The payment was made in accordance with the terms of two tenancy
SR 2 A R XA LA agreements entered into between the Group and JEM#ERRZH
244,00097C © fit 32 A 2 A B Ak 7 on 30th December, 1998 and 24th July, 2000 (collectively the “Old
TR AR MR MR REH Agreements”) for leasing of factory premises and staff quarters in the
HR—IUIUNEFZAZTH K PRC. On 1st May, 2003, the Group entered into a termination agreement
CRBRELH WA TR with EMZEBRZE® to terminate the Old Agreements with
T L 440 B e 0 5 Bk o 1) A immediate effect.

K > #5 DAAE T AL B R s & B T
fifre R_RE=ZHTH—H >
A 4 B g M 96 R B T ok
A1k T ik > B IR A b 5 T i o

P = S Syt E Rt pUIN & R N On 28th April, 2003, the Group entered into a tenancy agreement with
A% ) B RO 5E T R T B ) € A6 % SET R M SR M SE R A AL (PR SER WIS 4L”), an enterprise
T A Ak (T e 1™ 98 48 9 Tk &5 4k | wholly owned by J&"3€5 % H 1, for leasing of factory premises and
RMERRZEGLEERAZ staff quarters in the PRC (the “New Agreement”). The New Agreement
A 3E) FT LA 1w o #E DL AE expired on 30th April, 2006. On 27th July, 2006, the Group renewed
AL B % BT A A (T the tenancy agreement with HZET 2 ™ 8152 ™ 5 e 4y 8 W A 4L »
) Wi E R ZERAEN formerly known as JEM € A 4L (the “Renewed Agreement”) for
AZTHEW - R RFANGL leasing of same premises. Pursuant to the terms of the New Agreement
HZ+LtH » AREEHEKZENE and the Renewed Agreement, the Group paid rental expenses of
P B 1 2 JBE 3 468 5 Mg 5 Ak (T HK$2,359,000 (2008: HK$2,169,000) to H5E il Jf& "] S 5 [ S JBt 468 i T
5 2 1 28 28 8 5 Ak ) s AL B B A4k during the year. The Renewed Agreement expired subsequent to
Zt Ay S S A B o sk (1 BT the balance sheet date on 30th April, 2009. Details of the expiration of
1) o LB I S BT I the Renewed Agreement are set out in note 35.

PRk > A B AR N B T R 5E
DARE YAUE 35275873 R s
¥ At A 452,359,000 T ( R R
JUAE 2 2,169,0009 78) o B 397 17
CRAHARE _FZENAENA
= H B o B ok e W
1% WU B 3135 o
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33. BHEALRS ()

(ii) W _EEEFENH Z+XH>
Veeko Manufacturing Company
Limited (A2 W] & & #EH Z W&
AH) BRORZETRMAEEERA
B2 w] (RZEM i 2 — % 2 Bk
W) AT iR e B AEELN
i VLI 3R 58 3 R 2 A B A K RE
i JBe A< H115,100,000% 75 3 Jm &=
18,200,000 JC ° * — B R JL 4
SA=4—H » AREE R KSE
7 VB 2 0 R R R A
%51,310,0009 76 ( . F F )\ 4 :
1,310,000 JG) Ik 7% #5 % 77 i
REBRCEATNEHEHREL
BIFER - ZILAE RS LM
B il 78 A A A R 2 R M
735 e

34. BN L #ER

WAEEN ERRAMERTAMARZ
Ham R

76 91 1 A
i F 2 4 A
AR Ay 2 T e 2 A

HH R EEATBNB ZH M7 b5 %
BT LS 1 30 2 B R i 3 A I A o

35. A HIZFIHE

A B R 33 BT At > BEHT o kR A5 4 H AR
E_BZNEMA=1+HEW - AEE
- 488 A R h vk > PR A 4R R A
A 4 B SRRSE T M A SR B R A R A F
AL B S S SE M R T AT S 2 B ek DA %
Tl 0 I > Sl R R SE A o
TR AR FY) - HRESE A 2 A
TEHEAT > ZEFRAE T B AT BT 5 42 58 X 7%
HEAZ T5 558 Bk

anko

e ——

Veeko
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33. Connected Party Transactions (Continued)

(ii) On 26th April, 2000, Veeko Manufacturing Company Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, and W51 jE A 2 % g A R
/7], a minority shareholder of Dong Guan Dico, entered into a
supplemental joint venture contract for increasing the total investment
and the registered capital of Dong Guan Dico from HK$15,100,000
to HK$18,200,000. At 31st March, 2009, the Group had outstanding
commitments amounting to HK$1,310,000 (2008: HK$1,310,000) in
respect of the capital injection to Dong Guan Dico. The commitments
will be released on the termination of the supplemental joint venture
contract subsequent to the balance sheet date. Details of termination
of the joint venture agreement and relevant supplemental joint venture
contracts are set out in note 35.

34. Related Party Disclosures

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during
the year was as follows:

2009 2008

T# T#IT

HK$'000 HK$’000

Short-term benefits 4,541 4,587
Post-employment benefits 60 60
Share-based payments 169 273
4,770 4,920

The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined by the
remuneration committee having regard to the performance of individuals and
market trends.

35. Post Balance Sheet Event

As mentioned in note 33, the Renewed Agreement expired subsequent to the
balance sheet date on 30th April, 2009. The Group did not renew the Renewed
Agreement as the Group intends to terminate joint venture agreement entered
into between the Group and HZEW EMAFEFERAM AT in relation to
establishment of Dong Guan Dico and the relevant supplemental joint venture
contracts and to dissolve Dong Guang Dico. As of the date of this report, the
dissolution of Dong Guan Dico is still in progress and the completion is subject
to the necessary filings and approvals in the PRC.

colourmix &
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36. AAnEEABEERR 36. Summarised Balance Sheet Information of
2 the Company

TRARE A H > A A ) B AR YR SR

The summarised balance sheet information of the Company at the balance

51 A sheet date is as follows:
2009 2008
T# T Tt
HK$'000 HK$'000
I B R o E 2 R Investment in a subsidiary — unlisted 53,630 53,630
JRE Wiz i Jegg 2 i) ik JE Amounts due from subsidiaries 316,722 295,336
At 7 B Other current assets 824 876
JEASK I g A ] ik JEL Amounts due to subsidiaries (243,270) (218,368)
HoAth 7 B A & Other current liabilities (181) (260)
B Net assets 127,725 131,214
JBEA Share capital 18,449 17,677
ittt Reserves 109,276 113,537
HE £ 4H 3 Total equity 127,725 131,214
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() Pk

Name of subsidiary

FHSACA A R R
Colourmix Cosmetics Company
Limited

Colourmix Cosmetics Retail
Company Limited

R A RAT (Wit
Dong Guan Dico Fashion
Company Limited (note c)

73373 Vo d )
KENEHRAT (Hitd)

Meko Fashion (Zhuhai-Macau Cross
Boarder Industrial Zone, Zhuhai)
Company Limited (note d)

I S e 4 R
HIRAF (Hitd)

SV BER 5 1
HIRAT (Hitd)

BB R EARAT (Hita)
Shantou Yingko Fashion Company
Limited (note d)

Veeko

BREZZZNEZH=1—HILEE

37.

Attt/
L B B
Place of
incorporation/
establishment

3y
Hong Kong

H#
Hong Kong

B
PRC

e

PRC

o
PRC

i
PRC

i
PRC

anko

e —————

and 2008 were as follows:

C#fT R
BRBA

Al i A
Issued and
fully paid
share capital/

registered capital

1,000,000 7C
HK$ 1,000,000

100,00037C
HK$100,000

18,200,00037C
HK$18,200,000

13,000,000 7C

HK$13,000,000

20,000,000 7C
HK$20,000,000

16,600,0003 T
HK$16,600,000

8,000,000 7C
HK$8,000,000

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 435 B #§8RK Mz
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37. T EME 6N
AAFR RBRER ERZNE=EN
=Z+—H R E A E REEEW T

Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries

A E it

il CBAT
oA /G

@ N iAL
Proportion of
nominal value of
issued capital/
registered
capital held

by the Company
(Wita)

(note a)

100%

100%

75%

100%

100%

100%

100%

colourmix &

AY

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 31st March, 2009

EX =3

Principal activities
(Hitb)

(note b)

At b B i %
Retailing of cosmetics
& skin care products

At B i %
Retailing of cosmetics
& skin care products

TR
Manufacturing of
garments

JAR B

Manufacturing of
garments

JAK
Manufacturing of
garments

R R B
Retailing and wholesaling
of garments

T
Manufacturing of
garments
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37. TR A v GE 1 (A7)

VY I 2 )

Name of subsidiary

WS R A AT (Hita)
Shantou Yungao Fashion Company
Limited (note d)

Veeko Advertising Agency
Company Limited

R AT A ]
Veeko Fashion Company
Limited

Veeko Fashion Far East
Company Limited

Veeko Fashion (Singapore) Pte Ltd.

Veeko Holdings Limited

Veeko Manufacturing
Company Limited

B B R A R
Veeko Trading Fashion
Company Limited

BREZZZNEZH=1—HILEE

ik,
JR L H
Place of

incorporation/
establishment

il
PRC

3
Hong Kong

(3
Hong Kong

S B B L
British Virgin
Islands

B

Singapore

by ) aeids
British Virgin
Islands

KRB R
British Virgin
Islands

=i
Hong Kong

37.

CH#iT R
BRRA

al: I A

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital

36,000,000% 70
HK$36,000,000

100770
HK$100

2,400,00037C
HK$2,400,000

1%
Us$1

1,000,00037 3% ¢
SGD1,000,000

618.56F%7TC
US$618.56

1%
Uss1

600,0003 70
HK$600,000

nominal value of
issued capital/
registered
capital held

by the Company

(Hfita)

(note a)

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

AY

Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

A2
RACHET
A/

BT £ b

Proportion of

B 37

Principal activities
(Hitb)

(note b)

R BE
Manufacturing of
garments

AR B R

Provision of advertising
and promotional
services

A%

Retailing of garments

ERBABRRREE
Retailing of garments
in Taiwan

A%

Retailing of garments

BEFR

Investment holding

TR AR A E T
Trading of fabrics and
garments in Macau

BAHH

Trading of garments
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37. TR A GE 1 (A7) I 37.

For the year ended 31st March, 2009

VY I 2 )

Name of subsidiary

B S (RPER
HEME) ARAF

Veeko Trading (Macao Commercial
Offshore) Limited

Wina Success Limited
BRRMARAT
Ying Choi Macau Company

Limited

i

B

ik,
JR L H
Place of

incorporation/
establishment

wr

Macau

(3
Hong Kong

0

Macau

Notes:

a. A\ W) B B $5 i Veeko Holdings — a.
Limited HyMESE » B SCP R BT A b

3 HAS o> v P A -

b. Br L LEEHE—MAAHEN b
Bb o FRAT BB IR EEM R

S B HEAT o

c AR GEEEAFNZERGE c
E o AU A A 3 b ik > AR T

GG AR A Al 2 BOE A o

d. ARFUEERAIERERE  d

Z I R it

Veeko

anko

e —————

C#ITR
BUEBA,/
kA
Issued and
fully paid

share capital/
registered capital

100,000%8 '] i
MOP100,000

100370
HK$100

100,000%% '] #
MOP100,000

of this company.

enterprises.

AR i
RHHOH#T
oA /i

R T £ b
Proportion of
nominal value of
issued capital/
registered
capital held

by the Company
(Hita)

(note a)

100%

100%

100%

colourmix &

Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

B 37

Principal activities
(Hitb)

(note b)

A HH

Trading of garments

ERRCE/ES
Property holding

R BE
Manufacturing of
garments

interests shown above are indirectly held by the Company.

AY

The Company directly holds the interest in Veeko Holdings Limited. All other

The principal activities are carried out in place of incorporation/

establishment except as otherwise stated under principal activities above.

The company is registered in the form of equity joint venture company.

Pursuant to the joint venture agreement, the Group is entitled to 100% result

The companies are registered in the form of wholly foreign owned
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37. T ENE A EF (4Z) Jl37. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

g B B A ) R AR R B AR AR AT RERAE None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end of the
S T 15 R AR5 P A B AR o year or at any time during the year.

ERIMERR B RAE RN LEEBAR  The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of

B2 M S G O A R RS SR R R 4> the directors, principally affected the results of the Group for the year or formed

HEFMEZMBAR - EFERAHFIHIL  a substantial portion of the assets of the Group at the end of the year. To give

P B I8 28 W) 2 SR A B RHR R IR - details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.
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Financial Summary B #&EE

e

e
A iy ¥ A
BLIE

AR TR
Z ¥ A

% 7 B A 15

Je S

PR A BB A 0 R R AR 2 S
e TR GE R > B S A S

Veeko

RESULTS
BE=ZH=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31st March,

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

F¥#oT F#T F¥#oT F¥#T T¥T

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000

TURNOVER 509,208 581,315 642,287 754,224 789,644
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 84,444 57,927 40,862 86,145 13,409
TAXATION (10,772) (8,437) (3,901) (8,219) 4,607

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE
TO SHAREHOLDERS 73,672 49,490 36,961 77,926 18,016
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
W=H=+—H
At 31st March,

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

AR T F¥o0 TF¥I0 BRI

HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$’000

TOTAL ASSETS 322,326 368,379 370,335 490,892 513,672
TOTAL LIABILITIES (43,323) (75,230) (71,559) (118,487) (127,040)
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS 279,003 293,149 298,776 372,405 386,632

Anko colourmix &

e —————

2005 amounts and therefore these amounts have not been restated.

There is no material effect of the adoption of new accounting standards on the




Summary of Investment Properties IR EYERFE

AEAR -RBZLE=ZHA=1T—HMWH Particulars of the Group’s investment properties, all of which are wholly-owned,

AEEHANBREYENFHWT - at 31st March, 2009 are as follows:
il iikz

LYE 3 Properties Term of lease Purpose
T T AR PR Portion A of 15th Floor, G| T%
192-200 5% A H 0> Lorry Space No. L24 Medium-term Industrial
TN SHEAERY ~ VAR HLAL on 1st Floor and Parking Spaces
L24%% % 248 B P65 5% % P68 % No. P65 and No. P68 on 2nd Floor,

Wyler Centre Phase Il

192 - 200 Tai Lin Pai Road

Kwai Chung

New Territories

Hong Kong
Fs LB RIS L& A13 on 3rd Floor and A8 and w3 T%
489-491 ¥ #E T 2B O APE A13 on 7th Floor, Block A, Medium-term Industrial
A3 & Hong Kong Industrial Centre,
7THEAB K A135 489 - 491 Castle Peak Road

Cheung Sha Wan

Kowloon

Hong Kong
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